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Chair’s foreword

This report summarises
the invaluable work
undertaken by colleagues
in HSE and local
authorities to improve
health and safety

in Great Britain.

The Commission are
proud to have played
their part in this process
and were pleased to
discuss the welcome
progress towards meeting
the Revitalising Health
and Safery rargers with
stakeholders in November
2005. Further derails

are in the report bur

the latest figures show
over four million fewer
working days lost because
of injury and ill health

in 2004/05 compared
with the position at the
beginning of the decade.

Wi aim to be a modern regulator, committed to prolecting peopla at work, but committed
also to meeting the Betier Regulation challenge.

The HSC/E's draft simplification plan for regulation, published in November 2005, which
was commended by the Chair of the Government’s Better Regulation Task Force,” is
founded upon our risk-based targeted approach to the enforcement of legislation that is
comprehensible and easy to comply with.

The Government, Commission and HSE have been actively campaigning over the course
of the year to promote a debate around ‘sensible nsk’ and tackiing ‘risk aversion’. We have
engaged to good effect with a number of key stakeholders including politicians, employver
organisations, trade unions, insurers, lawyers and professional bodies.

The Buncefieid Oil Depot explosion and fire is a salutary reminder that risks to workers and
the pubsc still have to be properly controlled. In Decemiber 2005 the Commission, exercising
its powers under Section 14(2)a) of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974, formally
asked HSE and the Environment Agency (EA) to investigate. The Commission appointad

an Investigation Board comprising an independent chair, Lord Mewton of Braintres, two
independent members and HSE and EA stafi. We have made clear that the investigation
should be thorough and impartial and that, subject to legal considerations, thera should be no
deday in sharing with industry and communities close to major hazard sites the lessons learmt
from this incident.

The transfer of HSE's rail safety functions to the Office of the Rail Regulator (ORR) took

place at 1 April 2006. HSC/E can look back with pride over 16 vears during which it had
stewardship for rail safaty. | wish HSE stafi who transfermed to ORR well in continuing to meet
the challenges of improving the health and satety of rail workers and passengers.

It was with great sadness that the Commission learnt of George Brumwell's death in
Novermnber 2005, George, General Sacretary of the Union of Construction and Allied Trades
and a member of the Commisgsion from 1988-2004, made an immense contribution to driving
health and safety improvernents in the construction indusiny:

The year also marked the depanure of two Commissionars: Judith Hackitt, wiho had served
from 2002, and Joyce Edmond-Smith, whao had served from 1997, Their work in promoting
healih and safety is greatly appreciated.

Timethy Walker retired in Septembier 2005 after five years as HSE's Director General, The

Commission thanks Timothy for his contribution, welcomes the new Chief Executive, Geoffrey
Podger, and looks forward to working with him and all HSE colleagues in the coming year.

Bl ¢

Bill Callaghan Chairman
Health and Safety Commission

* The Betler Regulation Task Force became the Better Requiation Commission in January 2006,
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How we work

Vision and Mission

HSC Strategy
PSA targets

Reduce ill health,
injury and days lost

Fit for work, Fit for life,
Fit for tomorrow (Fit3)

Business Involvement

Enforcement

Activities which defiver other Govemmen!

Control major hazards.

T

Major Hazards

Worker Involvement

LAs and HSE Working Together

obfectives and sustain the day-

to-day running of the organisation and the delivery of statutory objectives

Directorates/Divisions

] Targets

. Strategic Delivery
Programmes

. Strategic Enabling

. Other programmes

Programmes of work

Figure 1 Links between our workstreams, Strategy, PSA targets, vision and mission

Our vision and mission

HSC/E's vision is to gain recognition of health and safety as
a comersione of a civilised soclety and, with that, to achieve
a record of workplace health and safety that leads the world.

HSC/E's mission is, working with local authorities, to protect
peopla’s health and safety by ensuring that risks in the
changing workplace are properly controllad.

HSC's Strategy

HSC's Strateqy for workplace health and safety to 2010

and beyond (www.hse.gov.ulk/aboutus/hsc/strategy.htm)
sats out the strategic direction for achieving health and
safety improvements in Great Britain, The Strategy’s four key
themes are:

1 Developing closer partnarships.

2  Helping people to benefit from effective health and safety
management and a sensible health and safety culture.

3 Focusing on our core business and the right interventions
where we are best placed to reduce workplace injury and
il health,

4 Communicating the vision.

The Public Service Agreement (PSA)
The workplace health and safety PSA is:

By 2008 improve health and safety outcomes in Great
Britain through progressive improvement in the control
of risks in the workplace.

We will measura progress towards the PSA against
six sub-targets, grouped under the two main arsas
of HSC's work: conventional health and safety
(workers' injury, il health, and resulting warking
days lost) and major hazards (precursor incidents
in the nuclear, offshore and onshore sectors).

Further information on the PSA targets and our parformance
{owards them is included in the Management commentary
{pages 20-28). You can also find PSA performance data

in DWP's Departmental (www.dwp.gov.uk/publications/
dwp/2006/drDE) and Autumn Performance {wwnw.chwp.gov.
ulk/publications/dwp/2005/autumnreport) Reports.
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Achievements during the year

HSC's Strategy sets the direction for HSE, LAs and others

to improve workplace health and safety in Great Britain. The
Strategy’s four themes point us in the right direction to deliver
the vision, the mission and the PSA.

This section lists some of the many things that HEE has
achieved during 2005/06, implementing H5C's Business
Plan 2005/06-2007/08 (www.hse.gov uk/aboutus/plans
hecplans/0506/ndex. htm). We have categorised these
axamples under the themes 1o show how the Strategy
influences everything we do. In many cases, thase
achievements included aspects of more than one theme.

1 We have been developing closer
partnerships by:

m Launching Health Work and Well-being, a new joint
strategy with DWP and the Department of Health,
focused on improving the health and well-being of
working age people.

m  Working closely with vaccine manufacturers and
other government departments to facilitate safe
manufacture of pandemic ‘flu vaccine, including
working with the World Health Organisation to draw up
guidelines for safe large-scale manufacture.

m Contributing to the UK response to the bioterrorism
threat, We have worked closely with the Home Office to
ensure biosafety and biosecurity function as seamlessly
as possible and keep hazardous biclogical materals safe
and securs inside the laboratory.

m Setting up the Ministerial Taskforce on health, safety
and productivity, which has helped build and mairtamn
high-level commitment across govermnment to reduce
public sector sickness absence levels.

= Engaging the support of West Midlands businass
and community leaders resulted in unprecedented
attendance by ethnic minority businesses (a traditionally
harcl-to-reach sector) at a safety and health
BWareness day.

= Acting on information provided at a Gangmasters'
Forum meeting covering the East and South-

East of England. As a result, inspectors identified
unreported incidents involving migrant workers

at an unregistered food factory. Subsequent

visits resulted in six enforcement notices

being issued and prosecution proposed,

s Establishing the key elements of a productive and
long-lasting partnership with our local authority
colleagues. This work has included:

- launching an IT-based tool (an extranet) to shars

informaticn efficiently and encourage communication
between HSE and LAs,

- revising the governance arrangements for joint Work;

- making arrangements 10 provide science support
for LAs" health and safety activities using HSE's
agency, the Health and Safety Laboratory (H5L) and a
first instalment of ©1 milllon during 2005/06 from a
£5 million fund;
agreeing the contribution that LAs will make to HSC's
strategic priorties and the PSA targets; and

- engaging elected members — including a handbook
designed to raise the profile of health and safety with
tham and aid discuzsion with their Council collaaguas.

Developing detailed plans for the mergers

recommended in the Hampton Report on reguiatony

inspection and enforcement (publishad in March 2005),

which we expect to complete ahead of schedule. We

have also provided a number of practical examples of
jaint work and collaboration between local authorities
and HSE, offering a model of how central and local
government can work together affectively.

Strengthening our relationship with industries and

trade unions in the onshore major hazards sector. We

are working together to develop performance indicalors
on the effectiveness of activity to control major hazard
risks. We have also held joint industry workshops on loss
of containment and on the continuad development of
voluntary reporting of uncontrolled releases of flammable
and toxic gases.

Handing over responsibility for rail safety

successfully to the Office of Rail Regulation (ORR).

We have worked with the Department for Transport

and ORR to ensure health and safety continues to be

requiated effectively and consistently, by developing:

- requiations that clarify HSE's and ORR's future
enforcement role;

. aMemorandum of Understanding to ensure continued
effective co-operation;

. a Health and Safety Enforcement Policy Staternent,
setting out the general principles and approach 1o
enforcament that ORR staff will follow; and

. arangemenis to transfer the people who work in
Her Majesty's Rallway Inspactorate (HKAT and our rail
policy function.

Working with the nuclear industry, the Nuclear

Decommissioning Authority and the Environment

Agency to accelerate and complete clean-up work and

key enabling activities for retrieval of legacy wasle.

Signing a new partnership agreemant with EEF,

the manufacturers' organisation, to improve

communication between HSE and manufacturing
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companias. The parinershn will allow manufactuners to
receive HSE's latest information and guidance, provide
feedback and attend joint seminar and training events
covaring issues relevant to the industry. it will stimulate
best practice, contribute to better regulation and, in
particular, alow for joint working on shared agendas.
Hosting the Noise and Vibration Roadshow jointly
with EEF. Seminars took place across the country
towards the end of 2005 and included talks from
specialists as well as an interactive dramatic presentation
performed by actors. Around 1200 peopla attended and
over 95% of delegates indicated they would try to apply
the advice about controling noise and vibiration at work.
Using our growing Small Buziness Trade Association
Forum to build the small business perspective into
HSE work. The Forum was externally evaluated after

12 months in operation and the results are very positive,
Members sea the existence of the Forum as a positive
step forward in HSE's approach.

We have been helping people to benefit
from sensible health and safety by:

Visiting 1000 construction sites as part of the
Fit Out Phase campaign In October. Targeting the
final stages of conslruction projects across the country
contributed to the wider Walch Your Stap campaign
and Ladiders Week.
Relling out our stress management standards to
tackle the problem of five million people suffering
from work-related stress. We have complated the first
phase by supporting a sample of willing organisations to
change their culturs, develop good practice and reduce
this major cause of absencea from work.
Launching practical online tools to help businesses
manage their health and safety effectively: the
Corporate Health and Safety Performance Indicator
(CHaSPI) and the Small and Medium-sized Enterprise
(SME) inclicator,
Launching a website to support worker involvement
in improving health and safety outcomes,
accompaned by complementary guidance and case
studies for emplovers (www.hse goviuk/workers).
Embracing the spirit of the Better Regulation agenda
and setting a leading example by implementing reforms
across HSE's regulatory regime. We hawve:
prepared a challenging simphfication plan,
undarpunnnng a commitment to make significant and
progressive reduction in regulatory burdens; and
- published a simple two-page guide for business
(especially SMEs) on why they might be visited by HSE
and what they can expect.
Running a successful UK presidency health and
safety conference in Liverpool, to influence and build
support for key themes in the Europaan Unéon (EU)
Occupational Safety and Health Strategy.
Ensuring (through safety case assessment) that the
demerger of the national gas distribution netwark
into new business units was carried out without
compromising safety, and thus maintaining publkc and
industry confidence.
Developing revised arrangements to support joint

working with the Ministry of Defence's (MoD's) new
Defence Nuclear Safety Regulator and agreeing

a forward work programime to support MaoD's major
investment at Aldermaston and Burghfield.

Carrying out a targeted programme of work to
address drilling and deck operations, in support of a
joint HSE-industry initiative to reduce accidents offshora.

We have been prioritising to achieve
maximum impact on work-related injury
and ill health by:

Running ten safety and health awareness days
(SHADs) aimed at the motor vehicle repair sector.
Of the 560 delegates who attended, 92% gave an initial
commitment to improve controls in their workplace to
reduce the risk of occupational asthma and work-related
skin disease. Around 250 delegates are expected to
attend the five remaining SHADs during. 2005/06.
Pursuing several significant and successful
prosecutions:
- Larkhall (Transco) — four fatalities following a gas leak
from the gas distribution network. £15 million fine,
- Humber Refinery (Conoco Philips) — significant fire and
explosion following a leak at the refinery. £895 000 fine.
- Cavendish Mill (Transco) - fatality following gas
explosion after a leal from the distribution network,
£1 mallion fine.
Working with British Energy, as part of its relicensing
and restructunng into a single nuckear licensee, {0 ensure
that changes and proposed improvement programmes
maintained or enhanced safety.
Regulating a major nuclear safety issue relating to
boiler closure units at some of British Energy’s nuelear
reactor sites, with improvied interactions and focus on
nuclear safety.
Replacing the 1875 Explosives Act with a modern
regulatory framework - the Manufacturing and Storage
of Explosives Regulations 2005, HSE ran a series
of workshops jointly with the industry 1o discuss the
phitosophy and content of the new Regulations. An
inspection programme supported this process.
Improving installation integrity and reducing
uncontrolled hydrocarbon releases in the
offshore oil and gas industry via a structured
intervention programme informing a joint HSE/industry
WOrking groug.
Engaging national and international experts to
update the estimate of the occupational cancer
burden in Great Britain. Thiz work will inform HSE's
pricrities for tackling carcinogens.
Successfully delivering our statutory responsibilities
under EU chermicals legislation. Through HSE, the UK
became the first EU Member State to complete a full
assassment under EU-wide biocides legislation,
Producing a guidance document on developing
exposure standards for different scenaros of potential
exposure following a chemical contamination incident.
Implementing the Rail Delivery Programme (RDP)
10 improve HSE Rail's effectiveness, efficiency and
ability 1o discharge its functions with greater consistency
and timalinass,
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Producing well-targeted delivery plans (inspection
programme and assignments) with Network Rail,
London Underground and train and freight operating
companias, which focus on priority areas to ensune
compliance with the law and reduce the risk of a
catastrophic event. -

Developing the new Railways and Other Guided
Transport Systems (Safety) Regulations (ROGS).
Thesa implement Eurgpean reguirements and replace
separate regulations on safety cases, safety-critical work
and approval of works, plant and equipment, ROGS
camea into affect in April 2006,

Establishing a formal panel to test regulatory
proposals, with a particular eye to scope for
non-regulatory alternatives and impact on SMES.

We have been communicating
effectively by:

Running a successful UK-wide publicity campaign to
increase awareness and use of sensible precautions
to reduce back injuries: Backs! 2005. The campaign
raised spontansous AWareness amaong employers

[by B%) and employess (by 8%), and around half said
they would take action as a result. Backs! 2005 also
incraased awareness of HSE as a source of information,
with & 13% increaze among employers and a 25%
increase for supenisors.

Attracting nearly 12 million visits to our website
since April 2005, Ressarch confirmead its popularity
and provided valuable information for continuous
improvernent. Our site is one of the most accessible

in government,

Tackling excessive risk aversion through promaotion
of sensible risk management. In July 2005, Lord Hunt
and Bill Callaghan launched a national campaign on
sansible risk management. By early summer 2006, wa
plan to produce widely agreed principles of sensible

risk management and launch revised key guidance on
risk assessment.

Using specific media to highlight relevant health and
safety issues directly to those at risk. This includes
local press and radio advertising to encourage safer
practice by people who drive at work and targeted
marketing information for refuse colleclion workers at
landfill, other disposal and recycling sites.

Engaging MPs to explain what HSE does and what
sensible health and safety means, including an MPs’
handbook and HSC addresses at party conferances. We
have seen an encouraging rise in the proportion of MPs
rating HSE as an effective organisation (a 17% increase
over bwo years).

Producing an enforcement communications strategy
to position HSE as a ‘firm but fair’ regulator. and
developing proposals to maximise the use of publicity
arising from formal enforcement to spread health and
salety messages.

Establishing the Partnership on Health and Safety
in Scotland, supported by HSC and Ministers. Leading
players within the Scottish health and safety system

are working to address priorities across devolved and
reserved government interests,

In addition, we have applied public sector
best practice in managing our resources
throughout the year by:

Working through a vigerous efficiency programme,
which is set to yield £50 million savings over threa
years. The Commission and Executive's accounis were
successiully completed over a very short imetable, A
review by Hi Treasury confirmed that HSE had strong
financial managemaent.

Agresing and implementing a new warkforce
strategy to ensure HSE has people with the nght skilis
to deliver its objectives and targets. We have agreed a
three-year pay deal, which will ba the basis of improved
employes refations, increased financial certainty and
more efficient administration,

Meaving into a new Merseyside Centre, which was
consiructed and will be run under a major Private
Finance Initiative. This, and other changes o H5Es
estate across the country, provides good-guality,
smaller open-plan offices, enabling us 1o iImprove our
effectivenass, communication and leam working, whila
rediucing or containing inflation-related costs across our
estate. Further details can be found on page 19.
Reducing corporate support costs, particularny
through making changes to communications delivery and
hurman resource senvicaes, 5o that HSE's resources can
be directed o front-line acthity.

Transforming our human resource services (o
strearniing the way we provide HR support, with rew
information technology planned for 2008, which will
enable us to make it even more efficient and effiective.
Improving the management of sickness absence in
HSE through more proactive management and improved
occupational health support. HSE lost an average of
7.82 working days per staff year, a fall of 0.70 days
compared to 2004/05. Instances of sickness absence
have confinued to fall,

Valuing our staff. HSE successfully completed the
review of Investors in People under the 2005 standard.
Developing an electronic documents and records
management system (for infroduction in 2006/07) to
improve management of corporate information, replacing
various paper and elactronic syslems,

Embedding Freedom of Information (Fol)
arrangements to implement new legislation, which
included handling high volumes of enquiries to a high
standard. In comparison with other central government
organisations, HSE receives the highest number of Fol
enquiries, Initial analysis shows that this work accounts
for 0.5% of HSE's administration budget, though a
significant proportion of these enquiries were already
answered under Open Government Code of Practice.

Further examples of our work this year are illusirated in
greater detail on pages 12-19.
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Fit for work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow (Fit3)

The Fitd SDP is focused on defvenng the conventional health
and safety element of the Public Senvice Agreement. During
200506, Fit3 has enjoyed a numbear of successes, with

the launch of the Health, Work and Well-being Stralegy. the
Minizterial Taskforce's work and high-profile peblicity and
inspaction campatgns targeting back pain and fafs. One

of Fit3's most nolable achievements over the last year was
launching Workplace Health Cannect in February 2006.

Workplace Health Connect is a new advisory senvice for
emaller businesses that provides free and impartial advice
on workplace health, safety and return-to-work issues.
The service helps employers and workers who want thew
workplaces to be healthy, pheasant places 1o work, but
do not hava the knowledge or confidence to create this
sort of environment,

Set up in partnership with HSE, Workplace Health Connect
conzists of an Advicaling for England and Walas (Tel: 0845
BOG BO0E), a website [www. workplacehealthconnect.co.uk)
and workplace visits from qualified advisers in the North
East, North West, West Midlands, Greater London and South
Wales, Healthy Working Lives (formerly Safe and Healthy
Wiorking) is avallable to smaller businesses in Scolland,
offering a similar sarvice to Warkplace Health Connect.

The Advicaline provides callers with practical, tadorad advice
and suppaort. Where appropriate, employers are encouraged
to make use of free workplace visils by professionally
qualified advigers who take time 1o understand the business
and help identify any workplace health issues, Working with
employers and workers, they find the best ways of tackling
these issues and help draw up plans for improvemeants.
Further visits and phone support are provided if required. Al
this is available free of charge. Advisers can also suggest
using specialists if appropriate.

“I genuinely believe that the Workplace Health
Connect service will make a significant difference
for small businesses.”

Louise Bisdee, one of the Workplace Health Connect Advisers

12

The overriding aim of Workplace Health Connect is 1o transter
knowledge to the employers and workers, and provide them
with the skills to tackle and sohe any future workplace health
challanges themselves.

The Health and Safety Minister, Lord Hunt of Kings Heath
OBE, chairs the Workplace Health Connect National
Stakehaolder Council, a group of key stakeholdars who have
agreed to champion the service within their fields. At a local
level, Regional Stakeholder Councils are providing valuable
support to our partner providers.
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Major Hazards

HSE's Major Hazards SDP is responsibie for reguiating

and assuing the safely of those indusinies where failure fo
manage risks to health and safety can lead to a catastrophic
inciciant, The industnes we regulate include nuclear, offshona
oil and gas, raiways and onshore major hazard industnes
{eg chemical manufacture/storage, mining, explosives, diving
at wovk, dangerous pathogens and genetically moaihed
organisms). The examples below give a flavour of the
imporiant work HSE does in this area.

Muclear industny

At the end of 2005, HSE completed its Periodic Safety
Feview (PSR) assessment for the Sizewel B nuclear
power station, This was a significant regulatony milestone
for the continued operation of the onty pressunsed water
reactor in the UK. Sizewell B generates 3% of the Uk's
electricity requirements.

PSRs are a regulatory requirement that contribute to HSE's
major hazards PSA targets and are undartaken avery len
years. The aim s to identify any emerging significant issues or
major improvements and ensure swift implementation. PSHs
complement day-to-day regulatory controls and represent

a comprehensive study of the safety of the plant, taking

into account aspects such as its operational history, ageing
factors, and the advances in safety standards since start

of operations.

HSE's early engagement with the licensee (British Energy)
was essential to success, Dick Howard, from H3E's Nuciear
Safety Directorate, co-ordinated a team of 20 specialist
inspectors who used HSE's safety assessment principles and
international guidance to assess the continued safety of the

plant. The total effort was substantial, with over 400 staff days

in a three-year frame. This formed an important part of HSE's
regulatory intervention strategy with the nuclear indusiry.

The HSE team concluded that British Energy had

completed a detailed scrutiny of the safety of Sizewed B and
improvements had enhanced its safety, bringing the design
closer 1o cumant standards. This provides confidence in the
ability of this station to continue 10 operate safety. Additionally,
the working approach forms a model to be applied to future
PSRz of other reactors.

Offshore oil and gas industry

In June 2004, HSC issued a Consultative Document (CD)
on proposals to replace the Offshore Installation (Safety
Case) Regulations 1992 (SCR92). Independent scrutimy and
operational experience had shown SCRS2 had a positive
impact on safety, but there weare criticisms of excessive
bureaucracy and concerns about regulatony complexity,
Earlier stakeholder meatings (imohing company safety case
practiioners, workforce representatives and trade unions)
had identified a number of potential areas for improvemsent,
which were considerad in the CD's development.

Thanks to active stakeholder engagement during the formal
consultation period, HSE was able to develop the Offshore
Installation (Safety Case) Regulations 2005 (SCROS) quickdy.
SOR0S came into force on 6 April 2006, We also consulied
widely on the development of merpretative guidance, and on
revised assassment guidance. SCROS will mean that there
are fewer safety case assessments each year. This will free
inspector resource (previously tied up with office-based safety
case assessment) tor redepioyment into iront-ing INSpECcion
waork to test and verity conformity with the duty holder's case
for safety. The revised Regulations have also addressed

the concern over regulatory complexity (a situation that

came about as a result of having to develop the regulatory
requirement for offshore safety cases before the supponing
requiatory framework was in place).
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Working with local authorities

The [ocal Authorities and

o HSE Working Together STEF aims
o make the bast use of HSE', . spective strenglhs
e | o teams (HSE
ns) ane key contnbulors fo
ase learns have engaged
butes to HS0's strategc

T LA

the Frogran

Dwring the year, many indiviclual LAs signed local’
Statements of Intent with their regional HSE counterpart,
confirming their commitment to tackling health and satety
issues. There was a strong focus on engaging elected
members and LA managers, raising awareness of the links
between health and safety enforcement activities and the
wider sirategic objectives of LAs,

In England, a project involving the Department of Trade and
Inclustry, the Trades Union Congrass, call centres, LAs and
HSE tackled stress in call centras. In ancther, Mancheaster
City Councll, the Chil Aviation Authority and Manchester
Airport Group targeted higher-risk manual handling activities
al airports.

Cheshire LAs worked on falls from height in warehouging/
siorage faciities and falls from vehicles. A ‘flexdbla warrants'
pilot has bean implemented in Hampshire and the Isle of
Wight 1o increase the flexiblity and responsivenass of health
and safety regulators to significant risks,

Joint working in the Morth East tackled care homes, ratall
delivery and safer working towns, A builders' merchants
progect undertaken in the Midlands aims to provide consistent
information on priorty topics to the trade and achieve greater
alignment of inspection standards between HSE and LAs.

In Londaon, a Moving Goods Safely project addressed
hazards associated with delivery of goods across sectors.,
A ‘buddy’ system in the South West between HSE and
LAs has established joint, targeted visits, seminars for local
small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs), training for
LA officers and liatson/support from HSE specialists.

In Scotland, all 32 LAs were involved in partnership work,
which has included safety and health awareness days aimed
at construction workers, cane home providers and outdoor
leisure venue maintenance workers, Other joint work targeted
musculoskeletal disorders, workpace fransport and manusl
handiing. Some projects, underpinnad by jeint training and
support, have targeled companies and industries that cross
curment enforcement boundanas, ncluding supermarket
home deliveries, care homeas, transport and warehousing.

In Wales. an innovative project between LAs and HSE
involved a training event for transport undertakings, followed
by inspection of both attendees and non-attendeas, 1o
compare standards and the training's impact. Additionalky,
HSE/LAs ran an awaraness campaign, imohing the Welsh
Assembly, to target cutdoor workers on occupational and
parsonal health matters such as manual handiing, emergency
first aid and the control of hazardous substances.
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Enforcement

HSE and focal authovily inspectors are at the front fng,
working with duty holders to ensure that nisks fo peopla’s

health and safety from work activities are controled properfy:

This means reducing risks and protecting peopls at work
by providing advice and guidance on how to comply with
the law, inspecting workplaces, investigating accidents and
compiaints and taking enforcement action wherg necessary,
HSE's recant work with Brifish Sugar Pic shows how our
inspectors work and the benefits that resulf.

During the investigation of three fatal accidents at several
sugar factories (over a six-month period), together with
tha destruction of a sugar storage facility following a dust
explosion, HSE inspectors decided that better health and
safety outcomes would be achieved through working
closely with the duty holder, British Sugar Plc. The duty
holder's Board and trade union representatives supported
the intarvention.

The accidents invohed transport, working at height and

a bailer explosion. The duty holder was formerly ssen

as a practitioner of good health and safety management
standards. Thers was a willingness on both sides to enter
info a frank discussion, to try and undersiand why the
company's safety systems had failed to delver the required
lavel of compliance.

During a series of visits to all six sites, HSE inspectors
addressed specific topics including manual handling,
transport, confined spaces, contractor management and
alectrical safety. They gathered evidence to assess the
quality of the safety management systems in a high-hazard
environment. There was full engagement with managess,
employees and their representatives, with regular reviews
and milestones to feed back the emerging findings to the
company’s senior managers. This allowed them to identify

how health and safety management arangements had failed

to address areas of poor practice, despita the apparent
positive pictune from external audit accreditation.

This open approach continuad, even while the company

was prosecuted and fined £400 000 for the transport fatality

and £250 000 following the dust explosion (the Crown
Prosecution Senvice are still considering the remaining two
fatal accident investigations).

Thiz partnership project led to development of a specific
action plan, which adopted the Du Pont principles of satety
management — namealy that ‘all accidents are preventabla’.
British Sugars Board accepted the recommendations

and, in particular, its responsibility to demonstrate visible
commitrment 1o delivering the company’s health and safaty
priorties. The oulcome has been a significant drop in British
Sugar’s accident rate
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Policy

The parinership includes BAE Systems’ workers, Eddie
Burke, Chair of BAE Systems Trade Unions' safety,
communication and invohemeant forum said: “We fully support
the initiative launched today. Cur triparite partnership

with the company and with HSE will promote a commaon
approach to health, safety and welfare across BAE Systems’
businesses, We are confident it will reduce accidents and ill
health to the employeas we represent.’

Batwesn them the 14 participating organsations empiay
around one miion people. The participants are Asda,
i worker represeniatives. with AstraZenaca, BAA plc, BAE Systems, BOGC Group, General

nd internationaliy; Eleciric, Grampian Foods, Greggs. HBOS plc, Morthern
Foods, Rolls Royce ple, Royal dail, Shell and Tesco.

W Eolie Wk This vaar was ff\l-\ laurch

rersiin FPitot (LORF)

wed LOPP in October 2005. The aim is
to improve haalth and safiety while reducing unnecassary
burdens on business, in ling with recommendations from the
Hampton Review and the Batter Regulation Taskiorce,

HSE and LAs launck

Wa have appointed an ‘account manager’ (a senior HSE ar
LA inspactorn) to each crganisation taking part in the pelot, 1o
act as a national focal point for all enforcing authority contact
with them. Account managers act as an intelligent gateway,
and provide a view of the whole organisation. This enables
HSE and LAs to adopt a cohesive and targeted approach to
thia organisaton.

Steva Smith, account manager for BAE Systems, has LOPP launch Bud Hudspith (AMICUS), John Doidge [Rolis Royce),
developed an angagement and improvement plan in Justin McCracken (HSE Deputy Chief Executive), Deborah Allen (BAE
partnership with the company. The same process is Sysiems), Geraint Day (Instilute of Directars)

faking place between other account managers and
paricipating organisations.

BAE Systems and experts from HSE have developed
standards for key subsects. Fulure activities will allow HSE

to support the company in solving the health and safety
challenges that sophisticated manulacturing presents, and o
IMEESLING Drogress.

Deborah Allen, BAE Systems' Direclor for Corporate
Responadhility, commentad: ‘Maintaining high standards of
salety performances is a key prority for our business. We
walcome this opporunity (o work more closely with HSE to
drive further improvements. We look forward to the challenge
their expertise wall bnng and we view thas as a calalyst for
accelerating change.”

16



Health and Sasety Cormmission Annual Repor and the Health and Safety Commission/Exacutive Accouns 200508

Communication

HSC's Strategy recognises the imporianca of communicating
effectively. In charnoioning he case for sensible health and
safefy we must use a wide range of communication tools
and approaches. HSE's Communications Directorate and
Defivery Sarvice work with ofher parts of the organisation

to provide media relations, stakeholder Managemant,
campaigns, events, oning goods and senvices, paper
publications and effective internal communications. The
Watch Your Step campaign is one axample of HSE's use of
communication to deliver health and safely improvements.

HSE designed the Walch Your Step campaign to raise
awarenass of the causes of slip and trip accidents - the
single most commeon cause of injuries in UK workplaces
= and of simple sensible precautions to presvent them.
We supported the publicity and promotional events with
educational and inspection activity to promote action.

The campaign targeted employers and employees in
construction, manufacturing, retail, transport and cleaning
with messages to employers that ignoring potential accidents
could trip up their business, and to employees that they
could make a difference to someone getting injured or not.

It used national and trade press, radio, online and ambxent
rmedia and ran through October 2005,

Following the campaign, the percentage of employers who
ranked falling and tripping as being armong their three man
safety risks increased from 13% (third most common safety
hazard out of 23) to 22% (top of their st of safety hazards).
A significant proportion of employers claimed to have taken
action on slips and trips before the campaign; post campaign
this propaortion increased (from 38%) to 55%.

Two in five employees recognised a press or radio adverl
and 5% spontaneously recalled the message 'It's everyona’s
responsibility — if you see it, sort it’.

The campaign launch received good press coverage,
including 13 live interviews with HSE's Deputy Chief Executive
Justin McCracken and a syndicated inteniew used by 40
rachko stations. Stakeholder promaotion and coverage of a local
visit by Lord Hunt provided further opportunities.

Early rasults from phase one of the campaign indicate that:

m  over 49 000 vigited the campaign website and
downloaded 15 000 posters;

B HSE's Infofine received 1300 inquiries;

m 3056 targeted inspections wera undertaken by HSE
and LA inspeciors; and

m HSE and LAs issued 86 enforcement notices.

Watch Your Step campaign team Steve Wood (Lesds Councl)
Paud Beaumont, Anne Cluinn, Keith King, Kevin Halas (ML),
Andrew Wetters, John Worth, Kelly Griffiths
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Science, engineering and technology

The HEC Science Strategy 2005-2008 wwwhse. gonc ik’
research/content/strategy0508. pdl) sets out how we will
apply high-quality sclence o develop a solid evidence base
for our work fo defiver the waion, mission and PSA. Science
also aliows us fo look ahead, identify and meet future
challenges. Cne exampile of this is HSE's work fo identify the
substantial impact that nanofechnology could have on healln
and safety in workplaces of the future,

Over the past three years, HSE has been considering the
impact of nanotechnology on workplace health and safaty.
W reviewed the available information on physicochemical
and texicological hazards of nanomaterials relevant to the
workplace and the occupational exposure situation, This
research identified a number of gaps in our knowledage
resulling In cur recommending & cautious approach to risk
management in an information note published in 2004, We
submitted the reviews for inclusion in the Royal Society and
Rayal Academy of Engineering report on nanotechnology.

During 2005/06, HSE has played a promnant part in
developing the Government responsa to this report.
Implementation of this response has included:

m A review of the adequacy of the regulatory framework
in refation to health and safety issues in the workplace
arising from nanomaterials led by HSE's Industrial
Chemicals Linit). As other government departments
complete their reviews, a comprehensive UK regulatory
review will be compiled that will inform our future
approach.

m Development of nanotechnology research: Brian Fullam,
Head of HSE's Corporate Science and Knowledge Lnit,
stears tha HSE and HSL multidisciplinary team which is
taking the l2ad on research efforts on exposure conirol
and the fire and explosion potential of nanoparticles.
We also contribute 1o discussions on the sirategic
direction of other nanotechnology research areas such
as environmental issues, hurman health issues, metrology
and sociatal issues, as well as maintaining an owersight
on further devaloprments in nanotechnology relevant to
the workplace.

Research on nanotechnology involves significant external

LK stakeholder and international collaboration. For exampla,
the fire and explosion research programme development is
using stakeholder meatings and HSE is part of a multinational
research project based in the USA. HSL is engaged in a
number of European projects, including one on occupational
health sponsored by HSE and the ELL In the regulatory
forum, HSE is representad on an EU nano working group and
it the standards arena.
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Managing our business

The Resources and Flanning Directorate (RPD) providies the
business infrastruciuce, corporale senaces and govermnance
which enable HSE to dalver ifs objectives and largels. An
important exampla of ifs work Bhis year was complating a
mafor project to refocate staff on Merseyside (our largest
centra) into a new buiding - much mproving the faciities and
working environment

In October 2003, following close consultation with DWP

and Safton Council, HSE agreed a confract to design, build,
finance and operate its new Merseyside Centre, Radgrave
Court, with a consortium led by Kajima Developments Ltd,
The strikingly modem building was designed by architects
Cartwright Pickard, commended by the Commission for
Architecture and Built Environment, and built by Kagrma
Construction in the heart of South Sefton's regeneralion area.

By December 2005, the construction of Redgrave Court was
completed under a Private Finance Initiative (FFl) contract.
Approximately 1600 people from HSE and its private sactor
senice providers were moved into the building during January
and February 2006. The building is now fully operational.

Redgrave Court is entiraly open plan and has been designed
to achiove the highest environmental standards. It will provide
excellent long-term value for money over the life of the
contract. By housing all of HSE's functions in Merseyside
under one roof, it will enable us to increase the effectivenass
of our senices to our stakehoiders and provide superb
working conditions for our employees,

Redgrave Court has been built, occupied and brought into
operation within the financial authority agreed by DWE The
transfar of risk inherent with a PFI protected HSE financially
from the consequences of the delay in construction.
Completion of this phase successfully concludes a major
project to improve effectiveness, secure long-term value
for money from HSE's estate and provide modern, flexible
working conditions for its staff.

Merseyside Headguarters team Steve Bailey (Mersayside Cantrg
Relocation Manager), Joanne Webb (Business Efficiency Lint),
Diave Murphy (IT Contact for Policy Group’s Corporate Support
Team), Basbara Proctor (iInformation hManagement Linit)
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Management commentary

The Health and Safety Commission
and Executive

The Health and Safety at Work atc Act 1974 establshed

the Health and Safety Commission (HSC) and the Health
and Safety Executive (HSE) and provided for the continuation
of the Employment Medical Advisory Service (EMAS). HSC
came into being on 1 October 1974 and appointed HSE

on 1 January 1975. HSC and HSE are statutory non-
departmental public bodies, performing their functions

on behalf of the Crown. Responsibility for HSC and HSE
fransfemed to the Department for Work and Pensions (DWF)
in July 2002.

The primary function of the Commission and the Executive,
whose existence and functions derive from the 1974 Act, is
to protect the health, safety and wellare of employees and to
safeguard others (principally the public) who may be exposed
fo risks from work activities. This includes propasing new
laws and standards, conducting and sponsoring research,
promaoting training and providing information and advice.
HSC provides strategic direction for Great Britain's health and
safety system, including HSE and local authorities (LAs). The
Commission reports to the Secretary of State for Work and
Pensions, and to other Secretaries of State.

HSC akso has powers to:

m approve and issue codes of practice, with the consent
of the Secretary of State, subject to consultation with
government dapartments and other onganisations;

m  make agreemeants with any government departrment
or person to perform HSC or HSE functions on
HSC/E's behalf;

®  make agreameanis with any minister, government
departmant, or public authority for HSC to perform
functions on their behalf;

m  give mandatory guidance (o LAs on enforcement; and

m  direct HSE or authorise any other person to investigate
and report on accidents or other matters and, subject to
requiations made by the relevant minister, direct inquirios
to be held.

HSE advises and assists the Commission in its functions.
Together with LAs, HSE has day-to-day responsibility for
enforcing health and safety law, investigating accidents,
licensing and approving standards in particularly hazardous
areas and commissioning research.

The strategic framework

Qur vision is to gain recognition of health and safely as a
comerstone of a civiised society, and with that, to achieve a
record of workplace health and safety that leads the world.

Our mission is, working with local authorities, to protect
people’s health and safety by ensuring that risks in the
changing workplace are property controlled.

HSC's Stralegy for workplace health and safety to 2010

and beyond (www.hse.gov.ul/aboutushsc/strategy. hitm)
sets out the strategic direction for achieving health and
saflety improvernents in Great Britain. The Strategy’s four key
themes are;

1. Developing closer pannerships.

2. Helping people to benefit from effective health and safety
managemeant and a sansble health and salety culiure,

3. Focusing on our cora business and the right intervantions
where we are best placed to reduce workplace injury
and il health,

4, Communicating the vision.

Workplace health and safety targets

In 2000, HEC and the Government published the Ravitaising
Heaith and Safety (RHS) Strateqy (www.hse.gov.uk
rewvitalising/strategy.hitm). This included three national targets
to improve conventional health and safety outcomes by
2010. The targets are to;

m reduce the incidence rate of fatal and major injury by
10%6:;

m reduce the incidence rate of cases of work-related il
health by 20%; and

m reduce the number of working days lost per worker from
work-redated injury and ill health by 30%.

The Reavitaising mid-point target, to achieve half the
improvament under each target by 2004, was also adopted
as the workplace health and safaty PSA for Spending Review
2000, We published our assessment on progress towards
thesa targets in Movember 2005 (www.hsa.gov.uk/statistics/
pdt/prog2005.pdi).
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Table 1 Bevitalsing mid-point targets/SR2000 PSA

Indicator Baselines 2004/05 targets Outturn Assessment
The incidence rate of 117.3 (1999/2000) 5% reduction 118.4 Mot met
fatal and major injury
accidents per
100 D00 workers
The incidence rate of | 2200 per 100 000 10% reduction 1800 per 100 000 Probably met
work-refated il health | employed in the last (1.8%)"
per 100 000 workers 12 months fie 2.2%)
(2001/02)
The number of working | 1.8 days lost per 15% reduction 1.5 days lost per Possibly rmet
days lost from work- worker (2000-02) worker*
related injury and il
health per worker

* Tha range of possibilities (95% confidence interval) for this reduction is from 8% to 23%.
** Tha range of possibilities (95% confidence interval) for this reduction is from 3% o 23%.

} As part of Spending Review 2004, DWP agreed a new workplace health and safety PSA with HM Treasury:

-

‘By 2008 improve health and safety outcomes in Great Britain through progressive improvement in the control of

risks in the workplace.’

We will measure progress against six targets, grouped under the two main areas of HSC/E's work — conventional health and

safety and major hazards.

Table 2 Corventional health and safety

Indicator

Baselines (2004/05)

Qutturn

Targets

The incidence rate of fatal and major injury | 118.

per 100 000 workars

i

The incidence rate of work-retated il health
per 100 000 workers

1800

The number of working days lost from 1.5

work-redated njury and il health per worker

HSG will publish the 2005/08
putturns for these indicators
in its Annual Statistics in
Auturmn 2006

3% reduction

6% reduction

0% reduction

* Based on self-reporting surveys. Assessment of progress will also use ofher S0UICES.

Table 3 Major hazands

Indicator

Baselines (2001/02)

Outturn (2005/06)

Target (2007 /08)

The numbser of events reporled by licance holders
that HSE's Muclear Installations Inspectorate
judges as having the potential to challenge a
nuclear safety system

143

118

7.5% reduction

The number of major and significant hydrocarbon
releazes in the offshore oil and gas sector

113

45% reduction

The number of relevant RIDDOR-reportabie”
dangerous occurmances in the onshore sector

179

130

154 reduction

* Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurences Reguiations.

Full details on the targets are available in the
pubishes performance data against its PSAs

During 2005/06, HSE has also been working to deliver
based upon the Rail Safety and Standards Board's Precursor Indicator Moded

events that could lead to a catastrophic event.

PSA Technical Note (www.hse.gov.uk/about us/plans/sr2004.htm). DWP
in its Departmeantal and Autumn Performance Reports.

a reduction in precursor incidents in the ral industry. This target is
{PIM). PIM is made up of 26 groups of recorded
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Table 4 Rail

Indicator Baselines (2001/02) | Outturn (Quarter 3, 2005/06)* Target (2005/06)"*
Rail Safaty and Standards Board's 100 788 85

Pracursor Indicator Model

* RS5B reports one quarter in arears

** Targets for 2006/07 and beyond will be taken forward with Office of Rall Regulation (ORR)

Key activities

HSE has set up the Strategic Programmes as its main agents
to implement HSC's Strategy and deliver its vision, mission
and targets:

m The two Strategic Delivery Programmes [SDPs)
encompass all HSE's aperational and policy work
that contributes directly to the PSA. The Fif for work,
Fit for Iife, Fit for tomomow SO (Fit3) focuses on key
hazards and industry sectors o deliver the conventional
health and safety PSA targets. The Major Hazards SDP
regulates key major hazard industries to reduce the
likelinood of catastrophic incidents.

m The four Strategic Enabling Programmes (STEPs)
support the work of the SDPs, putting key elements
of HSC's Strategy into practice. Their work includes
developing our partnership with the local authorities,
making sure that enforcement activity supports PSA
delivery and getting workers and businessas maore
irmiobved in health and safety management.

HSE aleo carries out 2 number of other essential activities
that underpin the Strategic Programmes and HSE's long-temm
capability, These include: :

m developing policy and ensuring that HSE remains an
exermnplar of modern regulation. The Policy Programme
is responsible for key areas of health and safety policy
(inchuding major hazards);

m enforcing the law, which remains one of HSE's key
interventions. Our inspectors play a vital rola in the work
of the SDPs. inspecting workplaces, offering advice
and guidance, and delivering major hazard assurance
regimes. They also have an imporlant reactive role,
to investigate accidents and complaints and, whena
appropriate, take formal enforcement action. Details
of prosacutions taken and notices served by HSE ara
published annually (data for 2005/06 will be published
chuming auturmn 2006);

® communicating effectively. The Communications
Directorate and Delivery Service provide HSC/E's media
redations, stakeholder management, campaigns, events,
online goods and services, paper publications and
effective internal communications,

® using science to identify the causes of health and
safety incidents, develop solutions to risks in the
workplace, test the effectivenass of its inferventions
and identify new and emernging risks. HSE leads a
major research and support programeme, carmed
out by the Health and Safety Laboratory (HSL)
and a wide variety of other organisations;

m providing corporate services and systems for HSE
and., in doing 50, making best use of available resources.

These activities (for example, personnel functions,
managing accommodation, performance and financial
management) are critical to HSE's continued opearation
and success.

Performance in 2005/06

The HSC Business Plan 2005/06-2007/08 (www.hse.gov.
uk/aboutus/plans/hscplans/0506/ndex.hitm) sets out how we
intend to:

B take forward HSC's Strategy;
m deliver the PSA targets; and
m  mest our statutony obligations.

The following is a summary of HSE's performance during
2005/06. More detall is provided on pages 7-19.

The Strategic Programmes
Fit fior work, Fit for life, Fit for tomorrow (Fit3)

The Fit3 S0P has continued to make good progress
during 2005/06. The 2004/05 health and safety statistics
{published in November 2005) wera good news in terms
of cur corventional health and safety targats, with the
10% ill health target ‘probably met’ and the 15% days
lost target ‘possibly met’. The statistics indicate that
HSE's approach to delivering improved conventional
health and safety cutcomes is beginning to make real
progress in terms of delivering the PSA. The Fit3 team
hopes that its work, such as the Stress Management
Standards rollout, Workplace Health Connect and the
Backs! 2005 campaign, will continue this positive trand,

Thie picture for injuries reduction (5% RHS mid-point target
‘not met’) was less positive. There has been significant
improvernent in specific sectors, which HSE has targeted
and engaged such as glass/ceramics, paper and board
and quarrying, and a 25% reduction in injury incidenca in
construction over the last five years. However, a challenge
remains in the service sector, whene major injury rates
continue to increase. Part of this sactor is LA enforced.
Fit3 and LA colleagues have worked hard to increase their
collective capacity to deliver. This process culminated in
March 2006 with a series of 14 roadshows across the
country to communicate and secure support for Fitd's plans
for 2006/07. The response was positive, with a number of
LAs taking up this challenge enthusiastically and realigning
their service plans to Fit3's priontes.
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Major Hazards

The Major Hazards SOP had to respond to the major
incident at Buncefield oil storage depot during 2005/06. The
investigation continues, seeking to identify the underlying
causes of the incident and ensure that all relevant lessons are
Jearnt and applied. Inspectors also visited similar faciliies to
follow up the Safety Alert issued by HSE in February 2006.
However, the Strategic Programme confinues to make good
progress. Catastrophic incidents such as Buncafield ramain
rare events and the number of precursor incidents (such as
leakage of highly radioactive liquid from primary containment
inside the Thorp plant at Sellafield) continues to decline, Al
threa indicators are on course to deliver the PSA targetls.
This year, Major Hazards has also added the Cross-Cutting
Programme 10 its portfolio, which aims to identify, engender

and communicate good risk managemeant practice across the

major hazard industries.

HSE has continued to ensure that safety standards on
Britain's railways are maintained throughout 2005/08, while
working closely with the Department for Transport and the
Office of Rail Regulation to ensure a smooth handover. The
transfer took place on 1 April 2006, Further information can
be found in ORR's Annual Report on Railway Safety in 2005
{www.rail-reg.gov.uk/server/show/category. 1238).

Local Authorities and HSE Working Together

The Local Authorities and HSE Working Together STEF has
made good progress, in line with its plans, and expects 1o
have met its objectives by summer 2006. During the year,
many individual LAs signed local Statements of Intent with
their regional HSE counterparts confirming their commitment
to tackling health and safiety issues. The STEP has focused
on engaging elected members and LA managers, raising
awareness of the links between health and safety
enforcement activities and the wider strategic objectives of
LAs. It has also improved communication with LAs through
the Field Operations Directorate partnership teams and by
launching an [M-based tool (an extranet) to share information.

Revised laison and governance amangements are now

in place to support an enduring HSE/LA partnership, The
reconstituted Health and Safety Executive/Local Authonty
Enforcement Liaison Committes (HELA) held its first meeting
in March and the new Local Government Panel (of elected LA
members) is due to meet HSC for the first time in May.

Enforcement

The Enforcement STEP has made good progress on its three
central workstreams. Following research, the programime
has developed a package of continuous improvement
WWWWIWS
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set out in enforcement strategies. The STEP has also been
implementing its new communication strategy, addressing the
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Business Involvement

The Business Involvement STEP enjoyed some notable
successes during 2005/06. Thesa included piloting maore
coherant, customer-focused arrangaments for dealing with
large organisations — the Large Organisations Partnership
Pilot (LOPP), launching practical online tools to help
businesses manage health and safety effectively (such as the
Corporate Health and Safety Performance Index (CHaSPI))
and using its growing Small Business Trade Association
Forum to build the small business perspective into HSE'S
work. The STEP also launched its Better Business campaign
[www hse.govuk/betterbusiness/index.htm) for small firms
in January 2006. Some activity will continue into 2008/07.
Evaluation of the campaign is already undenvay.

Worker Involvement

The Worker Involverment STEP progressed well during
2005/06, creating two new websites, In September, the
STEP launched a workers® websita, which supports mone
effective involvement of workers in improving health and
safety outcomes. In February, it launched complementary
guidance and case studies for employers. The Worker
Involvement team also worked closely with Fit3 1o contribute
io the Watch your Step awareness campaign in October. This
smphasised the benefits of involving workers 1o reduce slips
aridl trips in the workplace. The Programme is now explonng
opportunities to work with Fit2 on noise and vibration,

falis from height, construction, musculoskeletal disorder
programmes and campaigns for 2006/07.

Essential underpinning work
Palicy

HSE's Policy Programme has embraced the spirt of the
Better Regulation agenda and set a leading example by
implementing reforms across its reguiatory regime. This
philosophy is woven through many of the highlights featurad
in this report, but in particular, HSE has:

m prepared a challenging simplification pran underpinning
a commitment to make significant and progressive
reduction in regulatory burdens; and

m published a simple two-page qguide for business
{especially SMEs) on wiy they might be visited by HSE
and what they can expect,

ThaPnlicyteamahnrmamessMLH{Prasidamrmwm
and safaly event.

Communications

HSE continues 1o use communication activity as an
intervention to deliver improved health and safety
outcomes. 2005/06 saw two successful publicity
campaigns, targeting bad backs and slipping/tripping
accidents, plus a revamp of the HSE website (which
is one of the most accessible in govermnment).
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Science

HSE has continued to implement the HSC Science Strategy
20052008 (www hse.gov.ukiresearch/content/sirateqy0508.
pdi) to apply high quality sclence to delivery of the PSA
targets. During 2005/06, we have focused a great deal of effort
on supparting the Strategic Programmes in developing their
evidence bases, planning their use of science and managing
their parformance. This process will continue into 2008/07.

We also expect the Office of Science and Technology's review
of HSE science to report in the spring of 2006.

In 2005/06, HSE spent £44.5 million on commissioned
science and technology (not including science funded
through HSE by industry (£6.1 million, of which £0.3 million
was spent with HSL)). Of this £44.5 milion, £14.1 million
was spent on research commissioned with external bodes,
and £30.4 milion was spent on research plus scientific and
technical support with H3L. 167 research reports on newly
completed projects, camied out both by HSL and exdramural
contractors, were published on the HSE website,

Science and Research Outiook (SRO) (www. hsesro.com)

has been runming for over 18 months, and offers free access
to science and research output 10 a wordwide audience,
Registered users can also subscriba to a quarterly newslattar,
which includes articles on science and research activities and
have the opportunity to provide feedback. In this way HSE
seeks to utilise “trust networks” to disseminate information,
and access tha knowledge and expenence of the wider
SCIENce community dirsctiy.

The Research Projects Directory (wisw, hseresearchprojects.
com) hes expanded to over 1600 cument and completed
projects. During the last year there have been over 17 000
searches of the Directony and more than 100 000 *hits" on
indradual project records.

Efficiency

HSE has set an efficiency target of £50 milion for 2005/06-
200708, Progress in 2005/06 enabiled us to achieve our first
year target. Contributions included.

syustaining improvements in front-line daliveny;
implementing our Estates Strategy;

implementing our Science and Technology review; and
reducing the cost of acquiring our assets and services.

Performance management

HSE's prime ool for managing its corporate performance is
the Balanced Scorecard. The HSE Board recenves quartarhy
Balanced Scorecard reports, which provide oversight of the
crganisation’s performance. You can find these reports at
wienw hse.goviulkl/aboutus/hse/meetings/index.htm.

During 2005/06, HSE has camied out a project to revise

its Balanced Scorecard, moving away from the traditional
Kaplan and MNorton modal to a structure mors suited 10 public
secior organisations, HSE will start using the new Scorecard
in 2006/07.
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HSE alzo manages its performance specifically against
the FSA. This system (which complements the Balanced
Scorecard) collates performance data from each of the
Strateqgic Programmes to produce an overall report on
progress towards the targets (see page 21).

HSE manages business risk at a corporate level using its Risk
Management Plan (RMP). The RMP sets out HSE's strategic
risks and the Board-level risk owners with responsibdity for
ensuring that adequate measures are in place to manage
their riskis. The HSE Board considars the BMP guarterty.
During 2005/06, reporting to the Board on the plan was
integrated with quarterly reporting on the Balanced Scorecard
1o give the Board a more rounded picture on performance
and prospects for tha future.

Key stakeholder relationships

HSC's Strafegy for workplace health and safely to 2070
and beyond lalks about the necessity of ‘developing
closer partnerships’ in order to achieve its ambitious
targets. Stakeholder engagement, including the building
of partnerships, is therefore a key part of HSE's comporate
CoOMmMLnICations activity.

Stakeholders are organisations or individuals outside of
HSE who can have a significant influence on occupational
health and safety,

We have identified three categones of stakeholders;
corporate stakehaolders, Strateges Programme stakeholders
and regional stakeholders.

Engagement with our key corporate stakeholders, including
politicians, Government departments, unions, business and
safety organisations, is co-ordinated centrally through a
network of lead contacts. These corporate stakeholders are
redevant to many sections of HSE,

Cur Strategic Delivery Programmes and Strategic Enabling
Programmes analyse and plan engagement with their own
stakeholders, which is co-ordinated at prograrmme level.

HSE also engages with a wide range of stakeholders at a
regional level,

Wie aim to see our stakeholders promoting HSE's corporate

messages, managing their own health and safety well, and
publicty championing HSE and its wark.

Workforce matters

HSE values its people and operates policies and systems to
ensure the health, safety, welfare, development and eqgual
treatment of its staff.

Health and safety in HSE

Issues relating to the heatth and safety of our workiorce can
be found in Annex 2 (page 35).
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Table 5 Total HSE staff in post by occupaticnal group!

Occupational | 01/04/2002 | 01/04/2003 |01/04/2004 | 01/04/2005 | 01/04/2006 01/04/2006
group staff in post | staff in post | staff in post | staff in post | staff in post® staff in post
i {includes staff {excluding staff
transferred to ORR | transferred to
. on 1 April - for ORR on 1 April)
comparison only)
Front-line staff® | 1458 1508 1551 1517 1543 1442
fof which the
following are {1458) (1508) (1483)° [140) (1421} {1328)
front line/
operational
inspecions)
Inspactors 167 143 122 126 122 116
working in
functions other
than front
line/operational
Other 1461 1481 13589 1371 1470 1429
professional or
specialist staff
Other staff 1196 1030 aar 888 Hob 224
{of which are | (232) (94) (115 (100} (88) (28]
agency staff)
Total staff 4282 4162 4019 3903 399 3811

1 Adl figures are for full-time equivalant (FTE) staff, roundad to the nearest whoke numiber and inchude agency/lemporary staff and inward

secondeesioans

2 'Saff in post’ figures at 01/04/2006 include stafl who translemred 1o OBR on that date — when responsibiity for rail reguiation health and
safety matters transberred from HSE to ORR. Inclusion wil enable direct compantson wilh previous years' figunes,
3 *Front-line stalf’ includes operational inspectors and, since 01/04/2004, other visiting staff wha suppart delivery of key health and

safaty MESEEQES.

4 Early versions of the HSC Annual Reporn for S004/05 contained incomact figures for front-line operational inspecions, olnar professional or
aff for 2004/05. The table above contains the comect fgures

have been reduced by the total for “other visiting stafi” {note 4) as
clad in iha ‘front-line stal” b,

spacialist staff and olher st
5 From 01/04/2005 onwards, ‘other professional/speciaist staft” figures
folloves: BB for 07/04/2004, 113 for 01/04/2005 and 114 for 01/04/2006, Thesa siaff are already Nciu

HSE publishes staff in post figures for each of its

Directorates/Divisions at www.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/plans/

staff, hitm.
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Recruitment
During 2005/06, HSE:

m recruited 299 staff, including 90 trainee inspectors (this
figure does not include casual appoimtments or HSL
recruitrment);

m  commenced 78 UK and 9 overseas secondments and
loans intofout of HSE;

B appointed 11 fixed-tarm and 10 casual membears of staff;
and

m reappointed & former chvl servants.

Staff training and development
During the yesr we:

m identified and stanted developing a senior lzadership
talent pool;

m finalised a major new repositioning strategy for
learning and development. This will help us to mest
future challenges and the changing expactations of
stakeholders and staff; and

B provided training for 1500+ staff at over 200 events.
Adiditionally, we managed Inferchange programmes for
53 staff imwards and 48 cubwards.

Diversity

The Board gave HSE's diversity agenda a renaewed impetus
cluring 200506 by setting in place a vision, prionties for
action and the Diversity Steering Group. The Steering Group
COMPrises a cross section of senior managers and DWP's
Diversity Director. The Group's mandate is to challenge and
sustain HSE's drive for achievement of diversity targets.
Progress towards the Modarmising Govamment targets for
staff in post by gender/race/disability is published on our
website at www.hse.gov.uk/aboutus/reports/diversity, bitm,

We celebrated Black History Month and launched MAGHNET,
a natwork to promote equality of ethnic minorities within HSE.

The results of the 2005 Staff Survay showed an increase over
the pressous year in the percentage of staff from diversity
aroups who have a positive perception of HSE as an equal
opportunities employver and a good organisation to work

for, Survey parficipants from these groups werne also mona
positive than other staff about change management in HSE.

In late 2005, HSE launched a foundation programme to
alleviate increasing stalf shortages in Londan and the South
East. It was designed to attract a new cohort of recruits who
wowkd receive training and work experience in a range of HSE
directorates over an 18-month period, On conclusion of this
programme, they would then be appointed to permanent
roles. Minarity ethnic groups made up 30% of this intake.

The aqual pay audit for 2006 will be completed over the
period Aprl-June 2006, however, HSE monitars pay
progression on an ongoing basis.

Employes involvernent

It is HSE's palicy to consult the trace unions representing

its staff as widely as possible to give them the opportunity
to influence the development and apphcation of proposals
redating 1o major organisational and staffing changes. There
iz a formal consultation structure between HSE management
and unions within the Whitley system at both national and
local leveds. The HSE Whitley Council is the central forum

for discussion of all matters of concern to HSE as a whole,
Mational Whitleys are hebd quartery and ane chaired by the
Chief Executive.

HSE consults and negotiates with the trade unions about all
issues affecting the lerms and conditions of employment of
staff. This continues even during penods of tension, such as
the protracted negotiations about annual pay awards over
recent years (resulting in the thres-year pay deal agreed by
HSE and trade unions in January 2006).

Public interest and other
Cpennass

HSC believes that public access to health and safety
information improves public understanding and strengthens
public confidence in the healtth and safety system.

Details of HSC open meetings, together with agendas,
papers, minutes and those of its advisory committees

and subcommittees, are published on HSE's website.

You can find further information on HSC's commitment to
openness at www.hse.gov.ulky/aboutus/hsc/openness, him.

Sustainability

The following activities have helped to make HSE more
ervironmentally frisndhy;

m the new Mersayside Centre was built to BREEAM
(Building Research Establishments Ervironmental
Appraisal Methodd) Excalient standard, Features includs
armmonia chillers with least impact on global warming
and ozone depletion, a heat recovery system, rainwater
used to flush toilets plus solar shading and sensor-
controlled low-anergy lighting;

m the CO, emission threshold for scheme/poal cars was
reduced from 219.5 CO, to 180 CO,; and

m the Environmental Manageament System standard
accreditation (1S014001) was achieved, with a
recommendation for HSE to be awarded the new
standard with minor changes to the cument system.

Corporate Governance

HSC and HSE are committed to supporting the Comibined
Code on Corporate Governance and the Tumbull Report to
the extent that the Code can be applied to the Public Sactor,

The HSE Board iz made up of the members of the Executive
and the directors of the operational, policy and research
functions in HSE. It meets formally once a month, and by
weekly videoconference. it decides on a range of issues
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including strategy, personnel and resource issues and
monitors progress against the PSA targets.

The Commission (the chair and members of which are
appointed by the Secretary of State) also meets monthly.
Members are drawn from a wide range of backgrounds.
The Commission is the main source of independent advice
to HSE.

A, Commissioner also chairs the HSE Audit Committee.

This has been reorganised as an HSC committes with two
commissicners (one of whom will chair the committee), two
independent members and the Head of Internal Auwdit at DWF.

The redationship between HSC and HSE and its sponsoring
department is set out in a Framework of Accountabilities
(agreed in 2001) and a Financial Memorandum (agreed in
2004).

ions on use of resources are made annually by the
HSE Chief Executive to four senior managers (the Deputy
Chief Executives for Operations and Policy, the Director of
Resources and Planning, and the Chief Scientist), Further
delegations are made by these managers to other Board
members in writing.

Reports on progress towards the PSA targets are made
quartery to the Board, HSC and ministers {and to Treasury
twice a year). In addition, the DWP Minister responsible for
health and safety issues meets the HSE Chief Executive,

and other senior HSE managers and the HSC Chair, monthly
to discuss progress on PSA targets and other health and
safety issues,

Sponsorship

In 2005/06, HSE received sponsorship from commercial
organisations in support of the Working Well Together (WWT)
Roadshow and the White Van Roadshow, which visited
construction sites around the country to promote health and
safety and encourage workers to ‘sign up' to health and
safety best practice.

Tabla 6 Roadshow sponscrship

Company Armount
HSS Hire £30 000
Berkeley Homes £15 000
Bovis Lend Lease £15 000
Taylor Woodrow £15000
Gleason £15 000
Persirnmon Group £15 000
Scafftag £2 000
Malita £1 000
Total £108 000

The Roadshows were promated by the Federation of Master
WwwmmemUnmmﬁsw
Construction Training Board.

Payments to suppliers

HSE is committed to the prompt payment of balls for goods
and services received and is a signatory to the principles

of the Better Payment Practice Code, issued by ths Batter
Payment Practice Group. Payments are normally made as
specified in tha contract. Iif there is no contraciual provision o
other understanding, payment is due to be made within

30 days of the receipt of the goods or services or presentation
of a valid invoice or simiar demand, whichever is later, HSE's
overall performance during 2005/06 was 99.2% (2004/05
09,4%) of imvoices paid within the agreed credit penod.

Introduction of the euro

HSE continues to mainiain its changeover planning and
preparation activities such that, in the event of a positive
decision to join the single European cumency, the changes
required 1o the computer systems, business sysiems and
products will have besn identified and quantified and we
would be able to meet tha timescales set out in the Third
Mational Changeover Flan.

Forward look

Electronic Documents and Records Management (EDRM)
and Microsoft (M5) Outlook Project

The project aims to improve how we manage, find and share
information within HSE, this new way of working will be

used by all staff, To do this we are introgucing a new way of
saving, storing, retrieving and managing documenis, records
and emaiks.

We are making important changes to our systems and will be:

m introducing a new EDAM system called TRIM;

m replacing Lotus Notes email with Microsoft Outlock; and

m upgrading 1o newer versions of MS Office (WWord, Excel
and PowerPoint).

The implementation of EDRM will promots openness and
enable improvements in information management as woedl
as developing and sharing corporate intelligence. Thera will
be greater efficiency in the way we manage our information
as well as compliance with regulations and government
requirements.

Comprehensive communications, change management and
training programmes are planned 10 help staff make optimuem
use of the new systems and to realise the planned benefits.

The implementation will be delivered in a roling programme
with completion scheduled for summer 2007.

Humian Resources Staff Transformation (HRST)

This programme aims to transform HR Senvice across HSE
in order to realise servica improvements, staff savings and
financial benefits. To do this we are introducing a new HA
service centra, HR business partners, a new E-HR system
and streamiined HR policies and procedures.

The implementation of HRST will promote a maore managerial
culture within HSE with more user-frendly procedures, and

e
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batter online management information through the new e-HR
system (SAP). The single point of access to all HR senvices
will prowide staff and managers with more professional
advice, tools, training and support.

Comprehensive communications, change management and
training programmes are planned to help staff make optimum
use of the new services and systems, and 1o realise the
planned benefits,

The implementation is undenway with HR sarvice centre,
business partners and new HR guidance already in place.
The new e-HR system will be delfivered in a phasad approach
with complation scheduled for December 2006,

Post-balance sheet events

HSE's rail safety functions were transferred to the Office of
Rail Regulation on 1 Aprl 2006,

Pansion liabilities

Details of pension costs et ane containad in Mote 1(c) to
H3SC's accounts, Mote 1{k) and Mote 2 to HSE's accounts
and the remuneration report.

External auditors

The financial staterments of the Commission and the
Executive are audited under Schedule 2 paragraphs 14(2)
and 20 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 by the
Comptroller and Auditor General whose certificate and report
appear on pages 45-46.

The cost of audit work was £83 000, which related solely to
audit senices.

Financial position and results for the year

Financial year 2005/06 was the first year of tha SR2004
settlerment and, as planned, HSE front-loaded expenditure
inte this year, The aim was to make additional investment
quickly to support delivery of the PSA. Initial allocations were
reviewed mid-year 1o ensure that resources continued to
be directed towards strategic targets. HSE was succassiul
in terms of carmying out planned activities in 200506 (see
Achisverments during the year page 9) and expeanditura was
accordingly very close o planned levels, It is too early to
form a judgernent of the ultimate results in terms of health
and safety outcomes, as statistics for 2005/06 will not bea
available until Autumn 2006,

However, HSE's levels of expenditure in 200506 cannot

be sustained. HSC/E faces a considerable challenge to
adapt and deliver in efficient and flexible ways. A key part

of the response to that challenge is the undertaking of a
Fundamental Review aimed to improve HSC/E's ability to
dieliver its mission including meating its targets and ensurnng
its resources are used to best effect. The Review was started
in December 2005 and comprises two phases. First was an
independant assessment and second is the development of
draft proposals. This second phase is due to be concluded
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in July 2006. The outcome will e used n consultations
with DWE about HSC/E's future resource positian (ie from
2008/09).

A review of charging schemes was completed in this year,
Mo new schemes or extensions to existing ones werg
introduced.

Financial position (balance shest)

HSE's balance sheat shows debstors of £30 milicn (which
mainly consist of income due to HSE for chargeable activities)
and creditors of £82 million (which mainky consists of the
long-term liability 10 pay inance lease charges on HSLs
Buxton site).

Tangible fixed assets of £E3 milkon are also a significant
component of the balance sheet, of which £59 million relates
o HSL's Buxton site.

Results for the year (operating cost statement)

The cperating costs statement (for HSC and HSE) shows a
net operating cost of £245 million.

Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement shows a net cash outflow from
operating activities of €226 milion, compared to £204 milkon
in 2004/05. The main reason for this change is the increase
in nat operating costs from £216 million to £245 million. Cash
outflow of £5 million from investing activities (net of £1 million
proceeds from disposal of fixed assets) consists mainty of
enpenditune on ficed asset additions of £7 milon (£2 million
of which relates to kand and buildings).

The difference in the cash balance at 31 March 2005 and
31 March 2006 is due to the way HSE receives its cash
from CWE

Funding

HSC is financed by Grant-in-Aid within DWP's Request for
Fesources (RiR) 2.

Prior year comparatives

Comparative figures have been restated (where appropriate)
to take account of changes to the Financial Reporting Manual
(FReh).

Director’'s statemeant

So far as the Accounting Officers are aware, there is no
redevant audit information of which HSC/E's auditors are
UNAWEARE,

The Accounting Officers have taken all steps that they ought
to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that HSC/E's auditors are aware
of that information.
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Remuneration report

Management
Appointment of the Commission and members of the Executive

The Chairman was appointed for a period of five years in October 1999, His appointment was renawed for a further three
years in 2004. Commission members are appointed for a fixed term of three years, which may be renewed. The Chairman
i part-time, working four days a week. If the Chairman or a member leaves the Commission other than on the expiny of
their term of office, and it appears to the Secretary of State that there are special circumstances that justify the payment of
compensation, a payment can be made as determined by the Secratary of State, with Treasury approval.

Tha Chief Executive is appeinted for a fixed term of up to five years. All members of the Executive are established members of
the Senior Civil Service and subject to standard Cabinet Office terms and conditions. Mone of the members of the Executive
receive any predetermined compensation on termination of office.

The Secretary of State appoints the Chairman and Commissioners. Exacutive members are civil senvants and appoiniments
are made in accordance with the Civil Senvice Commissioner’s Recruitment Code.

Further work on the Civil Service Commissioners can be found at: W, CivlSEnICECOMIMissioners.aov. UK.

CIISSION

i.  The Secratary of State determines remuneration for Commissioners.

i. Performance management and reward for Commissioners is managed in line with principles set out for Civil Servants by
Cahinet Office and agreed by the Secretary of State.

jiil. The proportion of remuneration subject to performance conditions is broadly in line with the recommendation by the
Senior Salaries Review Body and agreed by the Secretary of State.

. Terms and conditions are set out in the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, A person rmay at any time resign their
office as a member or as a chairman or deputy chairman by giving the Secretary of State a notice in writing signed by that
person and stating that they resign that office.

v. Datails of the senvice contract for each Commissioner who has senved during the year are as follows:

Name Date of contract Unexpired term Notice period
Bill Callaghan 1 October 1999 1 year & months A
Margaret Burns CBE 1 April 2004 12 morths A
Daniel Carrigan 1 October 2004 1 year & months M/A,
Judith Donovan CBE 1 October 2003 & months N/A
Joyee Edmond-Smith 1 Apnl 2003 Contract expired A
Judith Hackitt 1 April 2005 Contract expired A
Sayeed Khan 1 April 2005 2 years /A
John Longworth 1 April 2005 2 years A
Hugh Robertson 1 April 2004 12 months A
Blizabeth Snape 1 October 2003 & months MN/A

vi There were no non-cash elements of the remunaration package during the year.
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Executive

i.  The remuneration of senior managers is in line with the recommendations for members of the Senior Civil Service by
Cahinat Office and the Senior Salaries Review Body. A remuneration commities exists to agree the remuneration of the
Executive, This committes consists of the Permanent Secretary, the Chairman of HSC and an independant member.

i. Performance management and reward is managed in HSE in line with the principles set out by Cabinet Office.

i, The proportion of remuneration subject to performance conditions is in line with the recommendation by the Senior

iv. The standard terms and conditions defined by Cabinet Office for members of the Senior Civil Service apply in HSE.
v. Details of the service contract for each senior manager who has served during the year are as follows:

Name Date of contract Unexpired term Motice period
Timothy Walker CB 2 October 2000 Contract expired 13 weeks
Geoffrey Podger 28 Novemnber 2005 4 years 8 months 13 weeks
Justin McCracken 1 April 2002 Opean-ended 13 wieaks
Jonathan Reas 13 September 2004 Open-ended 13 weaks

Tha standard terms and conditions defined by Cabinet Office for mermbers of the Senior Civil Sarvice apply in HSE to the
provision of compensation for early retirerment,

vi  There were no non-cash elements of the remuneration package during the year.

Remuneration of Commissioners and members of the Executive

Commissioners

The following held office during the year with responsibiities as shawn:

Bill Gallaghan
Margaret Burns CBE
Daniel Carrigan
Judith Donovan CEE
Joyoe Edmond-Smith
Judith Hachatt
Sayeed Khan

John Longwaorth
Hugh Robertson
Elizabeth Snape
George Brurmwell
Abdul Chowdry

Chairman

COMmmassioner

Commissioner

Commissioner

Commissioner to 31 March 2006
Commissioner to 28 February 2006
Commissionar from 1 April 2005
Cormmissionar

Commissionear

Commissionar

Commissioner 1o 30 September 2004"
Commissionar to 31 March 2005°

*Although George Brumwell and Abdul Chowdry did not hold office during the year, they are included for comparative purposes.

Sandy Blair and John Spanswick have both been appointed to the Commission since 31 March 2006.

Executive

The composition of the Executive during the year was as follows:

Timothy Walker CB
Geofirey Podger
Justin MeCracken

Jonathan Rees
Kate Timms CB*

Director General to 30 September 2005

Chiaf Executive from 28 Movember 2005

Deputy Director General (Operations) from 1 Apil to 31 August 2005
Acting Chiaf Executive from 1 September to 27 Novemnber 2005
Deputy Chief Executive (Operations) from 28 November 2005
Deputy Director General/Chigf Executive (Policy)

Retired ¥ Octobar 2004

*Although Kate Timms did not hold office duning the year, she is included here for comparative purposes.

Mote: Momanclature was amended from Diractor General to Chisf Executive with effect from 1 Oclobar 2005
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Company directorships

Justin McCrachen is a trustee of the British Safaty Councal.
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Salary and pension entitlements

The following sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the Commissioners and Executive.

Table 7 Bemuneration = Commissioners

Commissioners

Bill Callaghan
Margaret Burns CBE
Daniel Carrigan
Judith Donovan CBE
Joyce Edmond-Smith
Judith Hackitt
Sayead Khan

John Longworth
Hugh Robartson
Ekzabath Snape
George Brumwell
Abdul Chowdry

Table 8 Remuneration — Executive

Executive
Timothy Walker CB

Geoffrey Podger
Justin McCracken
Jonathan Rees
Kate Timms CB

Salary

: " rtime,
Salary' includes gross salary, performance pay of t:-c:_nusufs. twe
allowances, racruitment and retention allowances, private office allowances an

are subject to UK taxation.

Benefits in kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers arty benefit
taxable emolument. These benefits for Commission mem

200506
Salary

E000

115-120
15-20
15-20
15-20
15-20
10-15
15-20
15-20
15-20
15-20

200506
Salary

£000

BO-85
50-55
135-140
105-110

Banefits in kind
(1o nearest £100)

5 000
4 200
3 600

700

5100
1 400

Benedits in kind
[ro neasrast £100)

to-office travel, as appropriate. Any ensuing tax liability is met Dy HSC.

No significant awards were made to past senior managers.

No compensation was payable to former senior managers.

No amounts were payable to third parties for services of a senior manager.

00405

£000
100-105
10-15
&5-10
10-15
10-15
10-15

10-15
10-15

5-10
10-15

2004405
Salary
£000
145-150
120-125

55-60
75-80

Banafits in kind
{lz nearast C100H

6 700
3 800
3 600

700

1 000
100

5600

Bz @ kand
1o mearast £100)

reserved rights to London weighting or London
d any other allowances to the extent that they

s provided by the employer and treated by the intand threnya asa
bers include travel and subsistence payments associated with home-

a1
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Pension benefits
Table @ Pension benefits = Commissioners
Accrsad pansion Real ncrease in pension jnd CETY a1 CETV at Foaal InCridis
pansion at age B relaled lump surm o 59¢ 60 21006 S5 in CETV
Commissioners 000 £000 P000 £000 000
Eill Callaghan 35-37.5 pension and 0-2.5 pension and
105-107.5 lump sum 5-7.5 lurmnp sum 640 584 54

Table 10 Pension benafits — Executive

Accuad penson Real increases in pension and CETV at CETV at Fieal increasa

pension at agpe G0 redated lemp sum ot age 60 30306 310305 in CETV

Executive £000 E£000 E000 £000 £000

Timothy Walker 55-60 pension and 0-2.5 pension and 1415 1255 8
175-180 lump sum 2.5-5 lump sum

Geoffrey Podger* 45-50 pension and 2 .5-5 pension and 850 G24 BT
135-140 lump Surm 10-12.5 lump sum

Justin McCracken 5-10 pension and 0-2.5 pension and 149 9B 21
25-30 lurnp sum 2 5-5 lump sum

Jonathan Ress 45-50 pension 5-7.5 pension 780 523 oo

“These figures take No account of Mr Padger's pension rights from a previous employmant that ane in the process of beng Iransfemed,

As the current Chairman is not a member of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS), a pension provision has
been sat up, in line with FRS17, on a by analogy to the PCSPS' basis to account for the value of an equivalent fund for the
Chairman, An actuarial valuation of the fund was camied out as at 31 March 2006. The valuation has been undertaken using
the following assumptions:

B aninvestment return in excess of price increases of 2.8% pa;

®  an investment return in excess of earnings increases of 1.3%:

m the gross rate of retumn is assumed to be 5.4% pa, although this assumption has a minor impact on the calculation of
the liability;

m  in nominal terms, these assumptions are then equivalent to an allowance for increases in pensionable salaries of 4.0% pa
and an allowance for price inflation of 2.5% pa; and

m  Mr Callaghan is not reappointed at the end of his term, and his pension will be preserved until age 60 when it will come
into payment.

Mo Commission members, other than the Chairman, have pensions. Further details can be found in note 1(c) to
HS5C's accounts.

Civil Service Pensions (CSP)

Pension benefits are provided through the CSP arrangements. From 1 October 2002, civil servants may be in one of three
statutory based “final salary’ defined benefit schemes (Classic, Premium, and Classic Plus). The Schemes are unfunded with
the cost of benafits met by monies voted by Pariament each year. Pensions payable under Classic, Premium, and Classic
Plus are increased annually in line with changes in the Retail Price Index. New entrants after 1 October 2002 may choose
between membership of the Premium scheme or joining a good quality ‘money purchase' stakeholder arrangement with a
significant employer contribution {Partnership Pension account).

Employee contributions are set at the rate of 1.5% of pensionable earnings for Classic and 3.5% for Premium and Classic
Plus. Benefits in Classic accrue at the rate of 1/80th of pensionable salary for each year of senice. In addition, a lump

surn equivalent 1o three years' pension is payable on retirement. For Premium, benefits accrue at the rate of 1/60th of final
pensionable eamings for each year of service. Unlike Classic, there is no automatic lump sum (but members may give up
{commute) some of their pension to provide a lump sum). Classic Plus is essentially a variation of Premium, but with benefits in
respect of service before 1 October 2002 calculated broadly as per Classic.
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The Partnership Pension account is a stakeholder pension arrangement. The employer makes a basic contribution of between
3% and 12.5% (depending on the age of the member) into a stakenholder pension product chosen by the employes. The
employea does not have to contribute but where they do make contributions, the employer will match thesa up to a limit

of 3% of pensionable salary (in addition 1o the employers basic contribution). Employers also contnibute a further 0.8% of
pensionable salary to tover the cost of risk benefit cover (death in service and ill-health retirement),

Further detailz about the CSP Arrangemants can be found at the website: www.civilservice- pangions.gov.uk.
The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point
in time. The benefits valued are the mambers' accrued benefits and any contingent spouse's pension payable from the
scheme. A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arangement to secure pension benefits in ancther pension
schame or arangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses 1o transfer the pension benefits they have accruad
in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence

of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure apphes. The
CETV figures, and from 2003/04, the other pension details, include the value of any pension benefit in another scheme or
arrangement which the individual has transterred to the CSP amangements and for which the Civil Superannuation Viole

has received a transfer payment commensurate 1o the additional pension liabilities being assumed. They also include any
adiditional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of their purchasing additional years of penskon senice in the
scheme at thair own costs. CETVs are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Facuilty
of Actuaries.

Please nota that the factors used to calculate the CETV were revised on 1 April 2005 on the advice of the Scheme Acthuarny.
The CETV figure for March 2005 has been restated using the new factors so that it is calculated on the same basis as the
CETV figures for 31 March 2006.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued pension due

1o inflation. contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benafits transfermad from another pension scheme
of arangement) and uses commaon market valuation factors for the start and end of the period.

Sty Rigo

Bill Callaghan Geoffrey Podger CB
Chairman Chief Executive

Health and Safety Commission Health and Safety Execulive
Accounting Cfficer Accounting Officer

13 June 2006 13 June 2006
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Annex 2:

Improved performance against targets

This year has seen an improved performance against our
self-imposad targats. We achieved reductions in slip and trip
injuries and, most substantially, in Display Screen Equiprment
(DSE) related ill health, reflecting the effort that has gone into
producing good clear DSE guidance, effective use of our
occupational health resources and the improvements from
using electronic self-assessments. There was a sizeable
reduction in the number of RIDDOR-reportable incidents from
25 to 13. Despite this, we did not meet our target for the
year. However, HSE's RIDDOR rates are still markedly better
than those of comparable organisations.

Production of a three year framework
for health and safety

During 2005/06, management and trade unions agreed

a three-year framework (aiming to instil continuous
improvement) for managing and improving health and safety.
It Is based around threa themes:

®m  culture: work to achieve a positive and vigorous health
and safety culture in HSE;

m cohesion: ensure that our process and proceduras ang
simple, clear and effective;

[ ] mmmakesumthalmnmmeammheanh
and safety of our own staff, we do what we should do.

Table 1 Accident and ill-health statistics

Health and safety in HSE

Stress risk assessment

HSE complated an assessment of the risks associated with
stress in the organsation, A final paper to the HSE Board
recommended the setting up of a stress working group to
help the organisation address the problem. All Directorates
have produced their own stress action plan dessgned 1o
reduce the risk of il health associated with stress.

Other examples of progress this year include:

® Board members received training on effective leadership
in health and satety;

B a Governance review was commissioned 1o halp identify
and understand the barriers that prevent effective health
and safety management in HSE;

m no manual handing injuries cccumed during the
relocation of approximately 1600 people to the new
Merseyside Centre, Redgrave Court;

m a2 new lone worker protection policy was developed in
consultation with HSE's trade unicns and launched;

m allinternal policies and procedures were reviewed and
raformatted ahead of a relaunch of internal health and
safaty guidance material,

® our communication campaign on health and safety
improved as a result of staff feedback: and

m  we continued o provide well-being activities for our staff,
including health screening for the over 50s, smoking
cessation help groups and lifestyle seminars.

RIDDOR Apr-Mar 2006 Apr-bar 2005 Apr-Mar 2004
Fatal injuries 0 o 0
Major injuries an) 1 a
Dangerous occurmences 1] 0 0
Over-3-day injuries 9 (2) 20 (5) 8(1)
Il health 0 4 0
Other® ks 4] 0

133 25 (8) 1101)
Other over 3-day injuries, eg road traffic accidents 5 i 1
Il health othar 105 123 101 (2)
Minar injuries 127 (19) 153 (20) 128(17)
Mnimmmmmmmmmwmmm] 274 (6) 130 (4 80 (4)
Total 524 (28) 432 (29) 331 (24)

* RIDDOR (other) = injury to employee not at work who was
by HSE facilities management contractor.

The figures for non-HSE staff (i contractors) ane included and shown in brackets.

taken to hospital after an injury sustained on premises operated
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Annex 3: Better Regulation

The Health and Safety Commizsion and Executive (HSC/E)
are committed to protecting people's health and safety in the
workplace. As part of this commitment, HSC/E continues 1o
review what can be done batter. Better, smarter legisiation is
easier 1o understand and apphy. This helps secure stronger
commitmeant to compliance from business and S0 IMproves
health and safety results.

In developing its focus as a modern requlator, HSC/E
intends to take a lead role in ensuring its approach to
regulation is more effective and efficient, both for thoss
reguiated and the regulators.

Better regulation is rooted in HSC's Strategy for workplace
health and safety in Great Britain to 2010 and beyond. This is
reflected by many of the key achisvements highlighted earier
in the report. Some additional indicators of progress are set
out in the following paragraphs.

Simplification plan

An initial simplification plan was pubshed on the HSE
website in November 2005 and comments invited from duty
hokders and other stakeholders, The plan was well received.
A final version will be published in Autumn 2006, at the samea
fime az other Government departments’ plans,

The plan reflects HSC/E's determination to develop legislation
that iz easy to undarstand and comply with, o help secure
stronger commitment from business. Work is underway on
all iterns in the plan. Examples of progress made during
2005/06 includs:

®  aninernal challenge panel, established in July 2005 to
critically assess all new legislative proposals coming from
both domestic and European sources, The panel aims 1o
ensure batter regulation principles are applied and that
policy cutcomes are delivered by non-legistative means
wherewer possibla;

m  working with other regulators, eg strengtheaning
arangements for joint planning and inspection
approaches with the Environment Agency and the
Scottish Environment Protection Agency,

m Workplace Health Connect, launched in February 2006
isee page 12 for further details);

m ravision of the Offshore Installations (Safety Case)
Regulations to refieve unnecessary burdens on duty
hodders and HSE (see page 13 for further details);

®  as part of its work to reduce administrative burdens,
HSE has undertaken a review of its forms used

by business. Taking a zero-based approach, HSE
sought to remove unnecessary record kKeeping,
notifications eto. As a result, over 50% of our
fommns will be withdrawn during 2006; and

m influencing development of the EU Occupational
Safety and Health Strategy for 2007-12 during the UK
Presidency of the European Union (e July-Decamber
2005), to ensure a strong better regulation component.

Risk-based regulation

HSC published an evidence-based intervention strategy
Sensible health and safety at work: The regiiatory methods
used in Great Britain. This focuses on core activities and
the right interventions where they are best placed to reduce
workplace injury and ill health. A guide for regulators

fie HSE and local authority stalf) is being developed to
support the strateqy.

An explanation of how risk is used to target HSC's regulatory
regime was also published on the HSE website: The health
and safety peaple visit my business = Why? (www.hse.gov,
uk/aboutus/inspections.htm). It explains how HSE focuses its
work where the risk is greatest and is likely to have

mast impact.

HSE has continued to collect and anahysa the evidence of
risks ariging from work activities, not only for whera regulation
is needed but what interventions maka the most difference.
Work has also begun to review how HSE targets its
inspection activity to ensure that the inspection regime uses a
risk-based approach following best practice.

Regulatory impact assessment (RIA)

A cost-benefit analysis approach has been embedded in
HSC/E policy development since the early 1980s and forms
a key part of the Government's RIA process. During 2005/06,
HSE has used the procass 1o shape its policies, including
exploring allernatives to legislation (eg proposals to improve
worker involvernant in health and safety) and demonstrating
the benefits of simplification and consolidation (eg proposals
to revise regulations covering construction work). The RLA
process also informed negotiations in Europe on proposats
for a Directive covering the exposure of workers to risks
arising from optical radiation. Negotiations were concluded
successiully during the UK Presidency, including the remaoval
of provisions on natural radiation (ie suniight).

I—————
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HSE has continuad to achieve 100% compliance with the RIA
process. An RlA was produced for all policy proposals that
had an impact on business, charities or voluntary bodies, in
compliance with Cabinet Office guidance.

Improving RIA quality 3

HSE has been closely involved in the development of the
central RIA guidance published by the Cabinet Office. This
includes the planned introduction of a standard cost model
and the analysis of alternatives to regulation. HSE will reflect
such developments in a review of its internal guidance on
policy development,

Commitments to review regulations

HSE has an integrated research programme, which
addresses both generic and specific occupational health
and safety issues across the complete spectrum of HSC/E's
regulatory responsibilities. This includes research to assess
the cumulative impact of all regulations.

Common Commencement Dates

HSE implemented Common Commencement Dates at the
start of 2005. This meant that regulatory changes arising from
within the UK would be implementad on only two dates sach
year, ie 6 April and 1 October. HSE has now extendead this to
include regulations onginating from Europe where possible.

In January 2006, HSE issued its third biannual statement of
what the expected changes would be.

Consultation best practice

During the 2005 calendar year, HSC/E opened six

formal consultations on policy proposals, sl of which
lasted 12 weeks or more. This included consultation on
proposals to consolidate and revise regulations that cover
construction work. The exercise was one of the most
open, widespread and high profile undertaken by HSC/E.
The formal consultation exercise was primarily Internet-
based. In addition to the usual consultative document, an
online discussion forum was established. This generated
lively and passionate debate on a variety of issues. Orline
consultation allowed a large number of stakehalders, in

a very diverse industry, easy access to the proposals. I
facilitated discussion between participants and stimulated
debate. It provided various means of responding and
made post-consultation processing and analysis easier.
The forum remains open for continued discussion of the
developing proposals, and is a useful mechanism for
updating the public. Thera was also considerable face-
to-face consultation, both before and after the formal
consultation period, with around 2500 people attending

a series of 25 events in England, Wales and Scotiand.

HSC has established a Small Business Trade Association
Forum, chaired by Commissioner Judith Donovan CBE. It
ianmd&upnfmnbamfmmiraﬂamcialm.hsacim

with a large number of small businesses, and organisations
representing small business. The Forum, which mests four
tirmes a year, was set up to help HSC/E ‘think small first” by:

B consulting small business on new initkatives and
proposed changes in heatth and safety law,

m ensuring the concemns of small business ana heard; and

B improving communication.

a
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Statement on internal control

42

1 Scope of responsibility

As Accounting Officers (for the Health and Safety Commission, the Chair, and for the Health and Safety
Executive, the Chief Executive), we have responsibility for maintaining a sound systermn of internal contral

that supponts the achievernent of the Health and Safety Commission’s (HSC's) and the Health and Safaty
Executive's (H5E's) policies, aims and objectives, agreed with the Depariment’s Ministers, while safeguarding
the public funds and assets for which we are personally responsible, in accordance with the responsibilities
assigned to us in Government Accounting.

HSC and HSE are Non-Deparimental Public Bodies established under the Health and Safety at Work elc. Act
1974, The sponsaring department is the Department for Waork and Pensions (DWP). DWP ministers have
responsibility for health and safety issues in government. HSC/E also report to other Ministers on different
aspects of haalth and safety. The Haalth and Safety Laboratory (HSL) was established as an in-house agency
af HSE an 1 April 1995 and operates on ‘Next Steps Agency” principles. HSL provides health and safety
science and research senvices. It has its own Accounting Officer and arrangements to manage risk,

HSC/E's vision is to gain recognition of health and safety as a cornerstone of a civilized society, and with that,
to achieve a record of workplace health and safety that leads the world. HSC sets the strategy for securing
health and safety in relation to work activities with input and support from HSE.

2 The purpose of the system of internal control

The systern of internal control is designed fo manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to aliminate all risk
of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therafore, provide only reasonable, and not absolute,
assurance of effectivenass. The systern of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed (o identify
and priortise the risks 1o the achievemeant of HSC/E's policies, aims and objectives, 10 evaluate the likekhood
of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realized, and to manage them afficiently, effectivaty
and economically. It has been in place and progressively developed in HSG/E over the year ended 31 March
2006 and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, and accords with Treasury guidance.

3 Capacity to handle risk

HSC/E's mission is to ensure that risks to health and safety from work activity are properly controlled. Effective
managerment of risk (including reducing risk to members of the public) 2o far as is reasonably practical is a
cone part of that mission. HSC consults formally on all regulatory changes. It is also experimenting with new
means of consultation in order to ensure as wide a range of stakeholders as possible is reached.

HSC's Business Plan for 2005/06-2007/08 sets out how HSC/E will take forwand HSC's Strategy, deliver

PSA targets and meet its statutory obligations. For 2006/07, HSC published a one-year plan 1o supplement
the three-year docurment. The 2006/07 plan focuses on the work of the Sirategic Programmas - HSE's main
means for implementing the strategy and delivering the PSA. Risk registers are in place for each Strategic
Delivery Programme (SOP) and for the four Strategic Enabling Programmes (STEPs). Lower-level registers
have also been developed within SDPs. Effective risk management has been built into training modules and
guidance, HSC/E submits quarterly performance reports on progress towards Public Senvice Agreement

(F5A) targets to the DWP Minister responsible for workplace health and safety (the Pariamentary Under
Secretary of State (Lords)). The Chair of the Commission and HSE's Chief Executive meet the Minister monthly
to discuss a range of key issues, including progress on performance, in more depth.
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HSE's Risk Management Improvement Plan for 2005/06 was designed to take forward embedding risk
managemant pProcesses across the organisation.

4 The risk and control framework

HSE's Risk Management Framework codifies its overall strategy for risk managemant. It emphasises the need
for business risk management to be integrated with the organisation’s managament system 1o ensure that
rizks o business are managed effectively and proportionatahy:

The HSE Board comprises senior managers in operations, policy and corporate support, together with

the Chiefl Scientist, ihe Legal Advizer, and the Chief Executive of HSL. Governance amangements wers
streamiined in 2006 with izsues previously considerad by a Resource and Dalivary Group being integrated
into Board business. This extended Board remil puts greater emphasis on the inclusive nature of leadership
in HSE. Its remit was extended to include resource issues, business efficiency, and progress towards PSA
targets. This consolidation strengthens the capacity of the Board 10 take strategic oversight of all corporate
issues. The Board meets formally monthly to action health and safety issues, and policy, strategic and
personnel matters. All boards in HSE (eg programme boards) have a focus on managing any risks to the
programmes and projects within their remits where these could not be effectively addressed at a lower level,

The corporate risk management plan sets out HSE's strategic risks and is the focus for business risk
management at corporate level. The plan (which the Board considers quarterty) was restructured in 2005/08
to point up more clearly risks that were considered 10 be imminent. Reporting to the Board on the register was
integrated with reporting each quarter on the corporate Balanced Scorecard (HSE's prime tool for gauging
performance) to give the Board a more rounded picture on performance and prospects for the future.

Board-level risk owners have responsibility for ensuring adequate measures are in place for managing each
of the risks, and that their adequacy is regularly reviewed. Where appropriate, action is taken or in hand to
add further controls if needed. Risk owners review the risks they own to test whether they should be in the
corporate register and their mitigation is still appropriate. Board members have supplied the HSC/E
Accounting Officers with letters of assurance to provide an assessment of internal control within thair
commands.

The use of resources is subject to clear delegation, specified and agreed in writing, from HSE's Accounting
Oifficer to individual senior managers who are principal budget holders. HSE's and HSLs budgets are
monitored as a whole and monthly reports provided to main budget holders, the Finance Director and

the Accounting Officer (and in turn to the Department and Treasury] based on the latest resource outturm
information provided by Directorates,

Established corporate policies continue to operate covering a wide range of issues. They provide part of an
effective control framework across a range of risks including the health and safety of HSE's own siaff and
conftractors, personnel matters, workforce strategy, planning, finance, accounting, procurement, information
technology and regularity, propristy and authonsation of expenditure. Communicated throughout the:
organisation and available to all staff, all are set out in codes and othar instructions.

HSE delivers a large proportion of its work through programmes and projects. Further work has continuec

in 2005/06 to develop the project and programme management skills fo ensure successiul delivery of
targets. Formal programme and project management techniques ane usad for the planning and delivery of all
programme activity, Quarterly reports on progress on strategic programmes include a report on the main risks
ta the programmes and how they are being managed.

Treasury formally reviewed HSE's financial management systems in 2005/06. The raview m‘-ch,.-ded that
HSE's financial management systems were robust and that the business plan showed good evidence of
awarensess of risks.

HSCYE has moved rapidly to develop the means by which it measures progress on its PSA performance
and reduce the risk of not meeting these targets. It measures PSA performance against a number of targets,
grmp&dmmmromajnamascl HSC/E's work: corventional health and safety, and major hazards.
HSC/E is on course to daliver the major hazards targets. The baseline figures for the conventional health and

safety targets (2004/05) were established in late 2005.

a3
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5 Review of effectiveness

As Accounting Officers, we have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control.
Our review of this is informed by the work of the internal auditors and executive managers within HSE who
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework, and comments
made by the external auditors in their management letter and other reports. We have been advised on the
implications of the result of our review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Board, the
Audit Committes and the risk owners; a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of
the system is in place,

The Audit Committee, chaired by a non-executive member, met twice in 2005/06. The meeting planned for
March 2006 was deferred until May 2006. The committes has been reconstituted to increase the number of
non-executives and increase its challenge function. Its terms of reference have been revised slightly, in line
with Treasury guidance, and it has also been repositioned so that it provides formnal assurance to the HSC and
HSE Accounting Officers on corporate governance issues, including risk and internal control,

HSE's Internal Audit Unit has direct access to the HSC and HSE Accounting Officers and cperates 1o
Government Internal Audit Standards. HSL has an internal audit funclion supplied by a private seclor
auditor which also works to Government Internal Audit Standards. Their work plans are approved by Audit
Committees to whom they make regular reports. They include an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness
of the system of internal control and make recommendations for improvernent. The overall risk management
arrangements have been developed in consultation with HSE's Internal Audit Unit and will be subject to
regular review by it. The Internal Audit work programmes will continue to focus on testing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems of internal control in HSE and H3SL.

The overall opinion of the interim Head of Internal Audit is that HSC/E has a generally sound framework

af control which provides reasonable assurance regarding the effective and efficient achievements of its
objectives. This is based upon a much reduced audit programme due to the demands imposed by a major
change programme and the reduced resources availanle within the unit. A new Head of Internal Audit will take
up post later in the year,

6 Significant internal control problems (if applicable)

Thers were no significant intemal control problams.

BIl (e Cheeteid o

Bill Callaghan Geoffrey Podger CE
Chairman Chief Executive

Health and Safety Commission Health and Safety Executive
Accounting Officer Accounting Officer

13 June 2006 13 June 2006
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Health and Safety Commission
The Certificate and Report of the Comptroller and
Auditor General to the Houses of Parliament

| certify that | have audited the financial staternents of the Health and Safety Commission for the year ended
31 March 2006 under the Health and Safety at Work ete. Act 1974, These comprise the Operating Cost
Statement and the related notes. These financial staterments have been prepared under the accounting
policies set out within them.

Respective responsibilities of the Commission, Chairman and Auditor

The Commission and Chairman are responsible for prepanng the financial staterments in accordance with the
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder and for ensuring the regulanty of
financial transactions. The Chairman and the Chief Executive of the Health and Safety Executive are jointhy
responsible for the preparation of the Remuneration Report and the other contents of the Annual Report.
These responsibilities are set out in the Statement of the Commission’s, the Executive's, the Chairman’s and
the Chief Executive’s Responsibilities.

My responsibility i to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requiremants, and with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Irstand),

| report to you my opinion as to whather the financial stalements give a true and fair view and whether Ihe
financial statements and the part of the Remuneration Report to be auditad have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Haalth and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder. | also report
whether in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. | also report to you if,
in my opinion, the Annual Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Commission has

not kept proper accounting records, if | have not received all the information and explanations | require for
my audit, or if information specified by relevant authorities regarding remuneration and other transactions is
not disclosed.

I review whether the statement on pages 42 to 44 reflects the Commission’s compliance with HM Treasury’s
guidance on the Statement on Internal Control, and | report if it does not. | am not required to consider
whether the Accounting Officer's statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, o form an opinian
on the effectiveness of the Commission’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures,

| read the other information contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. This other information comprises pages 1 to 19 of the Annual Report, the
unaudited part of the Remuneration Report and the Management Commentary. | consider the implications
for my report if | become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

| conducted rmy audit in accordance with International Standards on Aucliting (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts,
disclosures and regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made b'grthachainuninmeprepamlionmmmﬂwmmalermE. and of whether the accounting policies
are most appropriate to the Commission’s circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

Ipﬂ:‘u‘ﬁdandpadurmedmfaudilsoastunbtﬁnaﬂlh&informﬁonandaxpfanalbmswﬁmwmm
nmmyinmﬁarlnmwﬂammhwmaﬁdmmmﬁfaﬂmﬁﬂemamthat the financial
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Health and Safety Commission
Notes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies

The financial staternents have been prepared in accordance with the 2005/06 Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM) (www.financial-reporting gov.uk) issued by HM Treasury. The particular accounting policies adopted by
HSC are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with the items considered material
in relation to the accounts.

{a) Accounts Directions

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Secretary of State with the approval of the Treasuny,
the Health and Safety Commission and Health and Safety Executive have prepared a joint Statement of
Responsibilties and Statement on Internal Contrel and separate Operating Cost Statements. HEC has not
produced a Balance Sheet as any assets and liabiities of HSC are included in the HSE Balance Sheet and
are rot material in value in the context of HSE balances (see Note 2 Request for Resources). HSC has no
bark account and all direct and indirect expenditure is paid for by HSE, so the production of a Cash Flow
Statement is deemed inappropriate. HSC has no need to produce Parliamentary Conirol Schedules and
the redevant information is contained in those schedules within DWP's accounts (refer Note 2 with regard to
Request for Resourcas).

(b) Accounting convention

Consolidated accounts have not been prepared, with the agreement of HM Treasury and National Audit
Office, on the basis that there is a statutory requirement to produce separate accounts for HSC and HSE and
it would be administratively burdensome and provide no additional information for the reader of the accounts.

{c) Pension costs

The: current Chairman is not a member of the Principal Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) but
arrangements exist whereby the Health and Safety Executive make pension payments analogous 1o those
that would have been made if he had been a member of the PCSPS and are payable out of the current
year's funds that are made available. A notional pension cost of 24.6%, (2004/05 18.5%), is added to the
Chaiman's emolumeants.

The provision is included in the HSE accounts.

The appointment of Commissicn members is non-pansionabile.

The employees of the Health and Safety Commission, other than the Chairman and Commission members,
are civil servants to whom the conditions of the Superannuation Acts 1965 and 1972 and subsequent
amendments apply. For details of the schemes please refer to HSE accounts, accounting policy Note 1(k).
2 Request for Resources

Pursuant to Section 43 of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Commission is financed by
Request for Resources from the Department for Work and Pensions (Request for Resources 2).

The total Request for Resources received by the Health and Safety Commission from DWP for the financial
year 2005/06 was £233 078 000 and after deducting £503 293 for staff costs and £345 125 for other
operating charges, the sum of £232 229 582 was allocated to the Health and Safety Executive. Thesa
transactions pass through Reserves in the Balance Sheet but produce a nil value in HSC.
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Health and Safety Executive
The Certificate and Report of the Comptroller and
Auditor General to the Houses of Parliament

| cerify that | have audited the financial statements of the Health and Safety Executive for the year ended
41 March 2006 under the Haalth and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, These comprise the Operating Cost
Staternent, the Balance Sheet, the Cashflow Statement and Staternent of Recognised Gains and Losses
and the related notes. These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set oul
within them,

Respective responsibilities of the Executive, Chief Executive and Auditor

The Executive and Chiaf Executive are responsible for preparing the financial statements in accordance with
the Health and Safety at Work ate. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder and for ensuring the regularty
of financial transactions. The Chief Executive and Chairman of tha Health and Safety Commission are jointhy
responsible for the preparation of the Remuneration Report and the other contents of the Annual Report.
These responsibilities are set out in the Statement of the Commission's, the Executive’s, the Chairman's and
the Chief Executive's Responsibilities.

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements, and with Intermational Standards on Auditing (LI and Ireland),

| report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
financial statemants and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited have been property prepared in
accordance with the Health and Safety at Work atc. Act 1974 and directions made thereunder. | also report
whather in all material respects the expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by
Pariament and the financial transactions conform o the authorities which govern them, | also report to you if,
in my opinion, the Annual Report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the Executive has not kept
proper accounting records, if | have not received all the infarmation and explanations | require for my audit, or
if information specified by relevant authorities regarding remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.

| reviaw whether the staterment on pages 42 to 44 reflects the Executive’s compliance with HM Treasury's
guidance on the Statement on Internal Control, and | report if it does not, | am not reguired to consider
whether the Accounting Officer’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion
on the effectivaness of the Executive’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.

| read the other infarmation contained in the Annual Report and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. This other information comprises pages 1 to 19 of the Annual Report, the
unaudited part of the Remuneration Repor and the Management Commentary. | consider the imphcations
for my report if | become aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial
staternents. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. My audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts,
disclosures and regularity of financial transactions included in the financial statements and the parn of the
Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the Chief Executive in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the ac.::uuqting
policies are most appropriate 10 the Executive's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

1
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Health and Safety Executive
Notes to the Accounts

1 Statement of accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 2005/06 Financial Reporting Manual
(FReM) (www.financial-reporting.gov.uk) issued by HM Treasury. The particular accounting policies adopted
by HSE are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with the items considerad
material in relation to the accounts. The financial statements consolidate the figures for the Health and Safety
Laboratony (HSL).

The accounting policies contained in the FReM follow generally accepted accounting practice for companies
(LK GAAP) ta the extent that is meaningful and appropriate to the public sector.

(a) Accounts Direction

In accordance with Accounts Directions issued by the Sacretary of State with the approval of the Treasury,
the Health and Safety Commission and Health and Safety Executive have prepared a joint Statement of
Responsibiliies and Statement on Internal Control. HSE has no need to produce Parliamentary Control
Schedules (the Statement of Parliamentary Supply and the Statement of Resources by Departmental Aims
and Obijectives) and the relevant information is contained in thosa schedules within DWP's accounts (refer
HSC Accounts Mote 2 with regard to Request for Resources).

(b} Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost corvention maodified 10 account for the
revaluation of fixed assets (including the depreciated replacement cost of the specialist laboratory site at
Buxton) and stocks, where matenal, at their value to the business by reference to their cumrent costs,

(o) Government grants

Crrants receivable
Pursuant to Section 43 of the Healih and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, the Commission has baen financed
by Request for Besources from DWR

The Commission pays to the Executive such sums as the Commission considers appropriate for the purposa
of enabling the Exacutive to perform its functions. The Request for Resources is credited to the General Fund
in the year in which it is received.

Giranis payable

(Grants payable are recorded as expenditura in the period when the underlying event of activity giving
entitlemant to the grant has been completed.

(d) Tangible fixed assets

All assets are held by the Health and Safety Executive on behalf of the Health and Safety Commission.
ltemns of equipment costing less than £2000 are charged to expenditurea in the year of purchase, except for
computer eguipment costing over £500 but less than 22000 and items of furniture costing less than £2000
which are grouped for capitalisation by vear of acguisition.

Iterns of equipment purchased under research contracts and held by outside bodies are charged to
expenditura in the year of purchase.

e I
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Fixed assets are capitalised at cost of acquisition and instaliation.

The respective values of all freehold properties and only those leasehold properties that qualify as finance
leases (refer accounting policy Note I} are included in the Balance Sheet. Land and buildings are valued on an
existing-use basis except for the specialist laboratory site at Buxton which has been included at depreciated
replacemeant cost.

Expenditure in respect of major capital refurbishment and improvement of properties occupied but not owned
by HSE is capitalised because the expenditure provides a long-term continuing benefit to the organisation.

All land and building assets are assessed each year for the likelihood of a matedal change in value as at

31 March. Where the direclors consider that it is ikely that thare has been a material change in value, assets
are revalued using a professional valuation or appropriate incdices. All other assets are subject to revaluation
each year at 31 March, using a professional valuation or appropriate indices, Professional valuations, where
appropriate, are undertaken at least evary fivae years, in accordance with the FrahM and FRS15,

Jones Lang LaSalle professionally revalued all land and building assets on the Buxton site as at 31 March
2005. Additionally, the freehold property at Carfisle was independently valued at 31 March 2008 by
Donaldzong, Chartered Surveyors. Ineach case, the valuations were in accordance with the Appraisal and
Valuation Standards of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors (RICS).

(e} Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Depreciation is provided on all other tangible fixed assets from the date of acquisition.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the replacement cost or valuation of an assel avenly over ils expeclad
useful life, except for vehicles acquired for the car leasing scheme, where B0% of the ornginal cost is
depreciated over the three year life of the contract. Assets in the course of construction and residual interests

in off-balance sheet PRl contract assets are not depreciated until the asset is brought into use or reverts 1o
HSE respectively.

Tangibde fixed assets are depreciated at the following rates to write them down to estimated ressdual value on
a straight-line basis over their estimated ussful fves.

Buildings Freahod over 50 years or remaining life

assessed by the valuers
Leasahoid ovar period of lease or 1o next

rent review excepl for HSL
PFl building which is 60 years
designed life

Specialist plant over remaining life

Furniture up to 15 years except for furniture
under tha HSL PFl contract which
is 30 years

Dffice machinery, publicity and major scientific egquipment up to 10 years

IT equiprment up to 7 years

Printing/typesetting and telecommunications equipment up to 7 years

Vehicles up to T years

Motor vehicles leased to staff up to 3 years

57
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(fi Revaluation ressrve

The revaluation reserve reflects the unrealised elerment of the cumulative balance of indexation and revaluation
adjustments. Surpluses arising on the revaluation of fixed assets.are credited to the revaluation reserve,
Deficits are charged to the resenve in respect of amounts previously credited; the balance of any deficil is
charged to the Operating Cost Statement,

(g) Stocks and work in progress
Stocks and work in progress are valued as follows:

m finished goods and priced goods for resale are valued at cost or, where malerially different, current
replacement cost, and at net realisable value only when they either cannot or will not be used (with the
exception of HSL, who expense all consumabile items on receipt). The cost of free publications is written
off in the vear in which it is ncurrad;

B work in progress is valued at the lower of cost, including appropriate overheads, and net realizable value.

() Foreign curmency

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign cumencies are translated into steding at the exchange rales
prevailing at the year-end.

Transactions which are denominated in a foreign curency are translated into sterling at the exchange 1
rate ruling on the date of each transaction and translation differences are dealt with through the Operating
Cost Statement.

i) Research J
Expenditure on research is written off in the vear in which it is incurmed.
i Capital charge

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utiised by HSE, is included in operating costs. The charge is calculated
at the Government’s standard rate of 3.5% in real terms on the average of all assets less labilities, except for
donated assets and cash balances with Office of HM Paymaster General, where the charge is nil.

(k) Pension costs '

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the Civil Sarvice Pension Schemes which are
described in Mote 2. The defined benafit alements of the schemes are unfunded and are non-contributory
except in respect of dependents” benefits. HSE racogrises the expected costs of these elemants on a
systematic and rational basis over the period during which it benefits from employees’ services by payment
o the Principal Civil Service Pension Schemes (PCSPS) of amounts calculated on an accruing basis. Liability
for payment of future benefits iz a charge on the PCSPE. In respect of the defined contribution element of the
schemes, HSE recognises the contributions payable for the year,

(Il Leases

Where substantialty all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased asset are borne by HSE, the asset is
recorded as a tangible asset and a debt is recorded to the lessor of the minimum lease payments discounted
twy the interest rate implicit in the lease. The interest element of the finance lease payment is charged to

the Operating Cost Statement over the period of the lease at a constant rate in relation to the balance
outstanding. Other leases are regarded as operaling leases and the rentals are charged to the Operating Cost
Staterment on a straight-line basis over the term of the leasa.

{m) Administration and programme expenditure

The Operating Cost Statermnent is analysed between administration and programme costs. Administration
costs reflect the costs of running the organisation as defined under the administration cost-control regime,
together with associated operating income. Income is analysed in tha notes batween that which, under

the regime, is allowed to be offsel against gross administrative costs in determining the outturn against the
adminkstration cost limit, and that operating income which is not. Programme costs reflect non-administration
costs. including payments of grants and other disbursements by the Executive.
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(n) Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions

PFI transactions (refer Note 21) have been accounted for in accordance with Treasury Technical Note No. 1
(Revised), entitled How to Account for PFI transactions as required by the Financial Reporting Manual, Where
the balance of risk and rewards of ownership of the PFl asset are bome by the PFl operator, the PFl payments
ara recorded as an operating cost. Where HSE has contributed assets, a prepayment for their fair value is
recognised and amorisad over the life of the PFl contract. Whera at the end of the PFI contract a property
reverts to HSE, the difference between the expectead fair value of the residual assets on reversion and any
agreed payment on reversion is built up over the life of the contract by capitalising part of the unitary charge
each year

Where the balance of risks and rewards of ownership of the PRI asset is bome by HSE, the asset is
recognised as a fixed asset and the liabllity to pay for it is accounted for as a finance lease, Contract
payments are apportioned between an imputed finance lease charge and a service charge.

(o) Provisions

HSE provides for legal or constructive obligations which are of uncertain timing or amount at the Balance
Sheet date on the basis of the best estimate of the expenditure required to sattle the obligation. \Whare the
effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounted using
the Treasury discount rate of 2.2% (2004/05 = 3.5%) in real terms.

{p) Contingent liabilities

Disclosure conforms to FRS 12, including discounting where the time value of monay is material.

{q) Value Added Tax

Most of HSE's activities are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax
on purchases is not recoverable. recoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or ncluded

in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where output tax is charged or input tax is recoverable, the
amounts are stated net of VAT,

(n Operating income
Operating income is income which relates directly to the operating activities of H3E. It principally comprises

fees and charges for services provided on a full cost basis to external customers. Operating income is stated
et of VAT,

2 Staff numbers and costs of the Health and Safety Executive

{a) Staff costs
200506 2004/05
£'000 £000 £'000 £1000
Staff with a parmanent  Other stafl angaged Total Total
LK contract on the abjectives
of HSE
Wages and salanes 121 4585 5099 126 554 121 283
Social security costs 10 487 30 10517 8 800
Other pension costs 24 578 62 24 840 17 289
Total 156 520 5191 161 711 148 172
Less recovenies in respect of outward
secondments (B75) - (675) (399)
Total net costs 155 B45 5191 161 036 147 773

Note: The Principal Civil Senvice Pension Scheme (PCSPS) is an unfunded mulli-emonyer defined benaft
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18 Commitments under non-PFI finance leases

HSE does not currently have any abligations under non-PF finance leases.

19 General Fund

The General Fund represents the total assets less liabilities of each of tha entities within the accounting
boundary, 1o the extent that the total is not represented by other resarves and financing items.

200506 2004/05
£'000 £'000
Balance at 1 April 31 496 34 332
Met operating cost for the year (Operating Cost Statement) (244 276) (214 850)
Net parfiamentary funding 232 230 209025
Excess appropriations in aid to be surrenderad to DWP - -
Transferred to general fund in respect of realised element
of revaluation reserve [Mote 13) 618 1 767
Release from general fund (Chairman's pension) (537) -
Release from general fund (othes) - -
Mon-cash charges and receipls (DWP senvices) ar (107)
Cost of capital 1161 1329
Balance at 31 March (Balance Sheet) 20789 31 496

20 Related party transactions

The Health and Safety Executive is an Executive Mon-Departmental Public Body with Crown status and is
sponsored by DWPR

DWP s regarded as a related party. During the year, HSE had several transactions with DWE that rmainly
related to the provision of pension services and premises costs. HSC and HSE did not have materal
transactions with other entities for which the DWP is regarded as the parent Department.

In addition, HSE had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central
government bodies. The significant transactions have been with the Central Office of Information, Cabinet
Office, Department of Health, Health Protection Agency, Treasury Solicitor, Ministry of Defence, Office for
National Statistics, Department of Ervironment, Food and Rural Affairs and UK. Atomic Energy Authority
(UKAEA) Fusion. Transactions mainly relate to premises, research, training, computer, legal services and
administrative expenditure together with relevant income from the provision of health and safety advice and
sernvices. None of the Executive members, the Chief Exscutive or seniar MANSGErs, or any person connected
with these, had any interest in any material transactions with HSE or received bengfits from HSE suppliers
during the yvear,

21 Commitments under PFl contracts

Off-balance sheet

HSE has enterad into two contracts let under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI) that have been assessed
under Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 5 as being off HSE's balance sheet. The intention of the contracts is
that the majority of the risks are transferred to the party best able to manage them and in these cases this is
the private sector supplisr,
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Merseyside Headguarters (Redgrave Court)

HSE has signed a 30-year 'design, build, finance and operate’ contract with Kajima Development (Bootle
Accommaodation Partnerships) Ltd for the provision of fully serviced accommodation in Bootle, Merseyside.
The coniract runs from October 2003 to May 2035. The estimated capital value of the contract iz £60 million.

I'T Services

HSE have streamiined the management of its IT service by placing all of its IT services with a single strategic
partner who will have responsibiity for delivery and end to end service. In June 2001, HSE signed a 10-year
contract with a partner (LogicaCMG with Computacenter as the key subcontractor) for the provision of
information and communications technoloay and information strategy (1S) service across all HSE sites and to
all HSE users. The estimated capital value of the contract is £23 million,

Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and futiire commitments

The total amount charged in the Operating Cost Statement in respect of off-balance sheat PF| transactions
was £25 436 403 (2004/05 - £23 986 597); and the payments to which HSE is committed during 2006/07,
anahysed by the penod during wiich the commitment expires, are as follows:

2006/07 200506
£'000 £000
Expiry within 1 year £
Expiry within 2 to 5 years 7
Expiry within 6 10 10 years 18 470 17 500
Expiry within 11 to 15 years = E
Expiry within 16 to 20 years - -
Expiry within 21 to 25 years
Expiry within 26 to 30 years 7 865 2172

On-balance shest

With affect from 28 October 2004, H5L took occupation of senviced accommaodation for laboratory and
support functions provided under a 32 years and 29 weeks term 'design, build, finance and operate’ contract
with Investors in the Community (Buedon), (ICB) Lid.

The transactions arising out of this contract have been accounted for in accordance with Technical note
no. 1 (Ravisad), entitled How to Account for PRI Transactions as required by the FRaM. As the balance of the
rizks and rewards of ownearship of the PFl property. situated at Harpur Hill, Buxton, is bome by HSL, rather
than the PR provider, ICE Ltd, the buildings and furniture proviced under the contract are included in HSL's
balance sheet as fixed assets. The liability to pay for these assets is in substance a finance lease obligation,
Contractual payments comgprise an imputed finance lease charge and a serica charge.

As part of the PRl contract, HSL handed over all of the land and buildings at the Sheffield site to ICB Ltd, and
a prepayment for thedir fair value of £4.6 milkon, as determined by the contract, s recognised in the accounts
and amorised eventy over the life of the PFl contract.

The Accounts ara prepared on the basis that the economic effect of granting a lease at Buton to ICE Ltd
is not material because the difference between the existing use value of the freshold land at Buxton as at
31 March 2006 and the value of the reversionary interest in the freehold land as at October 2034, is not
significant, given the location of, and potential uses for, the Buxton site.

m
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Imputed finance lease obligations under on-balance sheet PFI contracts comprises:

2005/06 2004105

£°000 £'000

Rentals due within one year 4673 3910
Rantals due after one but within two years 4 764 4 648
Rentals due after 2 years but within 5 years 15263 14 733
Rentals due after 5 years but within 10 years 28 799 27 919
Rentals due after 10 years but within 15 years 3331 32 457
Rentals due after 15 years but within 20 years 38 092 ar 121
Rentals due after 20 years but within 25 years 43 279 42174
Rentals due after 25 vears but within 30 years 34 412 43 516
Subtotal 202 593 206 478
Lass interast element 143 454 148 871
Total 59139 57 607

Charge to the Operating Cost Statement and future commitments

The total amount charged to HSL's Income and Expenditure account in respect of the service element of
on-balance sheat PFI transactions was £3 215 603, being 12 months charge (2004/05 - £1 325 315 for

3 months), both figures adjusted to include release of prepayment, and, subject to ICB Ltd achieving
contracted levels of service and availabiity, the value of the payments to which HSL is committed in respect
of the following financial year is:

200607 2005/06
£'000 £'000
Expiny within 26 to 30 years 2170 3 062

22 Contingent liabilities

HSE is currently defending two equal-pay cases. In October 2003, HSE successfully appealed at an
Employment Appeal Tribunal against an Employment Tribunal decision handed down in Juhy 2002. That
appeal was subject to cross appeal and in October 2004 the Court of Appeal referred a paint of law to

the European Court of Justice (ECJ). There was an oral hearing in front of the ECJ in March 2006 and the
Advocate General's opinion was received in May 2006. This opinion will be used to assist the ECJ in reaching
a decision. The decision of tha ECJ is not expacted until around the end of the WEAr.

Claims have been received by HSL and a main contractor engaged by HEL, alleging that injuries wera
incurred by an employee of a subcontractor engaged by the main contractor to work on HSLs site at Buxton.
The matter is currently the subject of a eriminal investigation, and HSL is awaiting further information to enable
it to assess its position with regard to any potential liability.

23 Financial instruments

FRS 13 {Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments) requires disclosure of the role which financial instruments
have had during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities.
Because of the largely non-trading nature of our activities and the way in which government bodies are
financed, HSE is not exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business entities. Maraover, financial
ingtruments play a much more limited roke in their ability to create or change risk than would be typical of the
isted companies to which FRS 13 mainly applies. HSE has no powers to borrow or invest surplus funds and
financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities and are not held to change the
risks facing HSE in undertaking its activities.
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